
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

JUNE 4, 2013 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners and Department Heads. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following minutes: 
i.  April 30, 2013 – Board of Equalization 
ii. May 21, 2013 – Regular Board Meeting 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Public Hearing to consider a two-year tax exemption for JDS 
Holding, LLP  

 
F. BIDS: 

1. Consider award of bid for Street Improvement District No. 176, 
Project 2012-20(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th 
Avenue SE).  (See Resolution No. 4). 

2. Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System 
Extension project to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc. 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider for approval the final plat of the Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, 
Lakewood Commercial Park 2nd Addition. 

2. Consider for approval the final plat of Meadows 7th Addition. 
3. Consider for approval the final plat of River Garden Addition. 
4. Consider for approval a variance request for Lots 11 & 12, Block 1, 

Terra Vallee 6th Addition. 
5. Consider approval of site authorization for Mandan Baseball Club, 

Inc. at Westside Bar & Grill/Mulligans from July 1, 2013 through 
June 30, 2014. 

6. Consider approval of a Homestead Credit Exemption for Lorraine 
Glasser. 

7. Consider to waive the competitive bidding requirement for the 
replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall). 

 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

June 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Consider a two-year tax exemption for Zueger Properties, Goldstar 
Properties, and Verity Homes. 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider the creation of, approval of the feasibility report for, 
approve the plans and specifications, approve engineer’s report, 
direct advertisement for bids and approve sufficiency of petition for 
Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 (Heart 
Ridge 2nd Addition). (See Resolution No. 5). 

2. Consider mill and overlay projects on 46th Ave SE and 2nd Street 
NW. 

 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No. 1150, An 
ordinance annexing certain adjoining lands to the City of Mandan, 
North Dakota, and extending the corporate boundaries thereof  
(tract of land being a part of Section 3,Township 138 North, Range 
81West). 

2. Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No.1151 
Zone Change for parts of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition – An 
ordinance to amend and reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan 
Code of Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and Zoning 
Map. 

3. Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No.1152 
Zone Change for School District 5th Addition – An ordinance to 
amend and reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

4. Consider Resolution Approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond for 
Street Improvement District No. 176, Project 2012-20(McKenzie 
Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 

5. Consider the Resolutions creating district, approving engineer’s 
report, determining sufficiency of protest, approving the plans and 
specifications and directing advertisement for bids for Street 
Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 
2nd Addition). 

6. Consider resolution annexing certain lands adjoining the City of 
Mandan. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. June 18, 2013 
2. July 2, 2013 
3. July 16, 2013 
 

M. ADJOURN 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

June 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 
Departmental planning meeting will be held the Monday prior to the Commission meeting, all 
Commissioners are invited, noon, former Morton County Library Room. Please notify the city 
administrator by 8:30 a.m. that Monday if you plan on attending. If more than two commissioners 
plan on attending, proper public notice must be given. 

 
 
 
 
 



(Page intentionally left blank) 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 7 

 The Mandan Board of Equalization met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on April 

30, 2013 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall.  Present were Commissioners 

Van Beek, Rohr, Tibke, Frank and Braun.  Also present were Finance Director Welch, 

City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Building Official Lalim, City 

Assessor Barta and Assessor Shaw.    

 

Mayor Van Beek requested City Assessor Barta to proceed with the Presentation. 

 

PRESENTATION OF THE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION DOCUMENTATION DATA:   

Richard Barta, City Assessor, presented the Mandan Board of Equalization Report for 

2013, summarized as follows: 

 The 2013 assessment roll total market value is $1,113,379,800.00; 

 The increase for 2012 was $110,621,600.00 or a 10.07% increase; 

 New construction contributed $56,787,060.00 million; existing property values 

contributed $1,056,592,740.00.  The balance is attributed to pro-rations, 

abatements and changes in assessments;  

 Existing commercial properties saw an average increase of 14.71% and existing 

residential properties saw an average increase of 6.8%.  Adjustments have been 

made to many individual properties within all classes of real estate based on the 

market value as it is today along with several other factors such as size of the 

home, etc.;   

 There were a total of 328 street appraisals completed. As of April 30, 2013, there 

were approximately 300 parcels that were not completed.  

 

Assessor Barta reviewed the following numbers - and provided comparisons back to the 

2010 statistics on record.  The following are the 2013 figures: 

~ Commercial Properties: 

o $336,803,585.00 = True and Full value 2013 for commercial buildings 

o True and Full value less exemption:  $253,352,356.00 

~ Residential Properties:  

o $898,817,115.00 = True and Full value 2013 for residential structures 

o True and Full value less exemption:  $859,822,595.00 

~ Total before exemptions:  $1,237,856,400.00 

~ Total after exemptions:  $1,113,379,800.00 

 ~ Total parcels = 7,789 

 ~ Residential Exempted Values: $38,994,520.00 

 ~ Commercial Exempted Values: $83,451,229.00 

 ~ New Construction Values 

o Residential:  $35,531,860.00 

o Commercial:  $21,255,200.00 

o Total:  $56,787,060.00 

  

 

 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Assessor Barta reviewed the exemptions allowed under state statute: 

 Homestead Credit for Senior Citizens or Disabled Persons 

 Blind 

 Wheelchair 

 Disabled Veterans Credit (50% or greater) 

 Public Hospital 

 Churches 

 Cemeteries 

 Nursing Home 

 Non Profit Lodges/Organizations 

 Public Schools 

 City/County/State owned property 

 New & Expanding Business  

 Commercial Remodeling 

 Residential Remodeling 

 Renaissance Zone 

 2 year New Home Construction 

 

2013 Completed Exemptions New Values added to the City of Mandan: 

1. 73 - 2 yr. new home construction, structural value added $14,207,700 

2. 4 – Renaissance Zone, structural value added $808,400 

3. 25 – New Business, structural value added $7,155,800 

4. New Businesses Added in 2013: 

a. Edgewood Vista Living – Market Value $1,142,400 

b. Shoal Loop Apartments – Market Value $671,800 

c. Lakewood Landing Nursing/Assisted Living – Market Value $797,400 

d. Walmart – Market Value $5,216,900 

e. Meadow Ridge Apartments – Market Value $1,361,400 

 

State of North Dakota Office of State Tax Commissioner 2012-2013 Ratio Adjustment 

Worksheet – is within the medians of 90-100%: 

1. Commercial Sales:  95.3%  

2. Residential Sales:  93.6% 

 

Residential Assessments – Barta reviewed the Appraisal of Improved Property for 2013 

document and explained how the sales-of-home-values are calculated.  In summary, it 

was determined that $138.04 is the value per sq. ft. using the program calculations.   

 

Barta reviewed the figures on the New Construction increases: 

1. Commercial Property increases Total = $21,255,200.00 

2. Residential Property increases Total = $35,531,860.00 

3. Total New Construction for land and structures is $56,787,060 

4. There were 14 new Subdivisions of 2012 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 7 

Barta reviewed the 2012 Changes in Market Values Worksheet which showed a total 

increase of $28,636,660.00.  

 

Commissioner Frank had a question for Barta on Page 3 of the report. Regarding the 

listing of the true and full value of residential and commercial properties, (in particular 

commercial exemptions on structures totaling $168 million), when there is an exemption 

such as that, that’s the number that reflects the value that the City would be using to 

determine what the mill level will be - the taxes that will be collected.  Barta concurred 

that is correct. The $1.1 million, residential-commercial-farmland, is the number to be 

used to determine the mill levy.  Commissioner Frank pointed out that in structure, 4.7% 

of the residential value is exempted and in commercial 30.6% of the structural value is 

available.   Barta stated that in his role as City Assessor he has always felt that exempting 

certain properties has been important and in comparison, West Fargo has always used a 

lot of exemptions also.   The exemption total includes properties owned by churches, city 

and state properties so the percentage is even smaller when looking at true exemptions.   

 

Assessor Barta announced that there is a sign-up sheet being circulated for those who 

wish to have their property reviewed.  If the reassessed value is not to the satisfaction of 

the property owner, they will be invited to the next City Commission meeting to 

challenge the reassessment.   

 

Mayor Van Beek invited members of the public to come forward to speak. 

 

Jim Engelhardt, Mandan resident came forward to speak.  He questioned how the home 

values are determined in comparison to the sales price of the home.  He gave examples of 

a purchase price of a $300,000 home but yet the taxable value was set at $220,000.  Barta 

replied that the Sales Ratio he explained earlier - in that in 2012 the state changed to sales 

ration from 95% to 100% – and in 2012 they allowed the City to go from 90% to 100%.  

He stated that last year Mandan was close to the 91% or roughly a 9% value reduction, 

however, every home is different in its value.  Mayor Van Beek directed Assessor Barta 

to contact Mr. Engelhardt at a later time to resolve the concerns he brought forward. 

 

Roland Wiedrich, Mandan resident came forward to speak.  His concern was that his 

property tax value went up $81,400 and the increase was $1,600 in taxes which equates 

out to about 30%.  He questioned how a homeowner is to budget for an increase such as 

that?  He inquired as to the limit as to how much the value can increase in a one year 

period.  Will he see that same increase one year from now?  Barta replied that Wiedrich 

did get an exemption for his basement being damaged during the flood and he probably 

did not get it for the following year.  Barta encouraged Wiedrich to sign up on the list of 

property members who wish to be contacted for a re-assessment. 

 

Butch Hohbein, Mandan resident, came forward to speak.  He stated his concern was that 

when many of the homeowners in his neighborhood were doing a comparison from 2011 

to 2012 tax valuation of those homes, there were losses from $5,000 to $20,000 in the 

valuation of their homes, however his property did not.  He stated he does not understand 

why the homes in that area would have lost market value – referring to the homes on 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 4 of 7 

Sweet Briar Road.  Why?  Barta replied that it would all depend on what was picked for 

sales.  He explained the grading process which is selected by the computer program used.  

He stated that foreclosures are removed from this process.   

 

Susan Beehler, Mandan resident came forward to speak stating that she lives on 14
th

 

Street Northwest.  One question she had for Assessor Barta was related to churches and 

school properties being exempt. She asked what percentage of that commercial exempt 

list are school properties.  What is that dollar amount?  Barta said it is figured in that 

assessed value, and all the other years he has testified to that; but when he is asked for 

those numbers he says that those properties are not assessed.  The state says it is not 

necessary to assess those properties so there is no record of any City, what their schools 

or churches are valued at.  She does not understand why Barta can say there is a dollar 

value on there when he has not been able to give that value to her nor has any other City 

in the state of North Dakota been able to give her that dollar figure because it is not 

required by law to assess those properties.  She requested clarification on that matter.  

She stated that Barta has explained that a computer program selects and calculates these 

computations.  Her opinion is that a computer program is as good as the person that puts 

the information in or develops the program.  She has stated in the past there are problems 

with the way Mandan determines the property values.  She requested clarification of the 

mill levy process determination.  She also mentioned that the City came into her home in 

2011 to assess the property value and it went from $124,000 down to $115,000 because 

she has a corner lot property, but she claims she does not have a corner lot.  She said her 

property value for 2012 went from $124,000 up to $150,000 but she does not understand 

why that occurred.  She indicated that it is not a fair and equitable way to determine 

taxes.   

 

Barta replied that 2 years ago the State requested the City of Mandan put property values 

on properties.  At that time letters were sent out to different exempt properties and asked 

them to report what they are insuring them for and that is the value put on those exempt 

properties so that is the way that was determined.  He will look into the issue about not 

being a corner lot.  If there is no central air in her home that adjustment will be made.   

 

Commissioner Frank inquired of Barta, if the exempt properties - who were contacted to 

provide their insured values for a basis for the value of those properties – if those values 

were included on Page 3 of the report under commercial properties of the $1.2 trillion 

dollars true and full values for the City of Mandan?  Barta replied yes, that if a property 

has an exemption on it, it will be part of the exemption clause.   

 

Colleen Boehm came forward and stated she owns property in both Mandan and 

Bismarck.  She indicated that the Mandan property is being taxed almost as much as the 

Bismarck rate.  Her concern is that she does not receive the same services in Mandan that 

she receives in Bismarck when it comes to the quality of schools and park and the street 

maintenance services offered by Bismarck.  She feels there is an improper value 

assessment of taxes to the property owners in Mandan.   

 

Gene Boehm came forward to speak.  He stated he sold his home in Mandan to his 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 5 of 7 

children but he still resides in the home.  His concern is that the street in front of this 

home has not been taken care of during the 44 years that he has lived there.  He voiced 

concern that he has paid his taxes along with increases throughout the years; however, he 

does not feel the streets and property have been maintained well by the City. 

 

Gary Gugel, a Mandan resident, came forward to speak.  He stated he purchased his 

property in 1998 for $43,000 and it went up about $20,000 in tax base up until all these 

adjustments started happening.  Last year it went up $15,000 and $30,000 this year.  He 

stated that his property was rated last year from average to good.  He did a few minor 

improvements such as painting, replaced screen doors, took out some trees and that 

moved him from average to good category.  His concern is that when he applied for a 

Home Improvement loan, he was denied by the bank; however, the bank would give him 

a Renovation loan.  His concern is that if he moves forward with additional updates to the 

home, will the City then move the home from a good to excellent level?   His concern is 

that the bank(s) are on a different scale for borrowing/lending monies to homeowners that 

are not in line with the taxable value of homes in Mandan.    

 

Doug Kaiser came forward to speak and stated that he has a concern with the recent 

notice he received from the City indicating that his home’s value was increased by 

$42,000, which indicates that since 2007 that would be an increase of over $100,000 to 

the value of his home.  He stated he understands the process of assessing valuations to 

properties; however, his concern for coming forward tonight is about the exemptions the 

City has been granting, in particular, Walmart.  (The 6
th

 wealthiest people in the United 

States.)  He feels that he, along with other property owners in Mandan, are covering the 

taxes for that company which does not make sense.  The point of the Tax Equalization is 

Mandan residents’ taxes and home valuations are going up because of the need to collect 

money to feed City services, while at the same time the City is giving away tax 

exemptions.  He encouraged the City Commission to re-examine the tax exemption 

policy because the current one is not fair to the property owners.   

 

Debbie Holter a Mandan resident came forward to speak.  She stated she has been a 

resident in Mandan all her life and also has a small business located in Mandan.  She 

indicated that her home went up $140,000 in value which equates out to a 50% increase.  

She requested a re-evaluation be done and Mr. Barta did that.  According to the tax value 

her property value is $30,000 more than the bank’s appraisal of the property.  Her 

situation is the reverse of other valuations discussed today, because her home is the oldest 

on her street yet it has been valued at $30 - $50 thousand more than others used as 

comparables.  Her second concern brought forward, (a clerical error that she has 

attempted on several occasions to have corrected but has not been done yet), was that the 

original sales price of her home was $40,700 too much.  The home that her parents live in 

went up $50,000.  Neither her home nor her parent’s home have had any updates since 

the 1980’s.  She questioned the reasons for the tax value increases.  She outlined the 

credentials she holds with regard to her knowledge of tax laws and stated she has been an 

attorney for over 30 years in Mandan thus she pointed out that she is knowledgeable 

about how the taxing programs work and/or are supposed to work.  She feels that the City 

of Mandan needs to change its programs.  She feels there are problems with the way the 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 6 of 7 

City looks at assessing property tax exemptions and how the City grants tax exemptions.  

She stated that it was not necessary to give Walmart the tax exemption because the 

company was going to come to Mandan regardless.  She is of the opinion that residential 

(apartments) do not need to be given tax exemptions because housing is booming.  She 

suggested discussions be held to resolve the issues regarding tax exemptions being 

granted where they do not need to be granted.   

 

Mayor Van Beek asked for any further comments from the public.  Hearing none, he 

asked for comments from the Commissioners.  

 

Commissioner Frank commented that she does not agree with the comments made 

regarding the (unsatisfactory) services provided by the City of Mandan.  She stated she 

would like to see the differentiation between Mandan and Bismarck.  She stated that the 

Commission looks hard at the taxing of property owners in the residential areas of 

Mandan to make it fair and equitable for those residents.  Hearing from residents tonight,  

it appears there are concerns with the increases in the property tax valuations.  There was 

less concern about the “valuation” on the house, and she wonders if it is because the City 

is trying to play “catch-up” – wherein homeowners have experienced that and it is 

difficult to swallow but the valuation of the homes are more accurate in its reflection of 

the market rates right now.  Market conditions are driving up valuation costs.  She stated 

she would like to hear from the people who testified tonight if it is the increase that is 

difficult to swallow and/or if residents are dissatisfied with the overall valuation.  She 

expressed a thank you to the homeowners for coming forward and indicated this 

conversation should continue and also stated there are some concerns the (Assessing) 

department needs to evaluate too.  

 

Debbie Holter came forward and voiced concern about the valuations as presented by the 

banks.  She said that you can pull up MLS and they will say anything you want them to 

say.  Her concern is that she and other residents came forward tonight to voice their tax 

valuation problems.  She believes Commissioner Frank ignored those problems during 

her comments.  There are properties that are under-valued and properties that are over-

valued.  Holter stated that she and other attorneys in the area have experienced 

complaints from residents - and that it is frustrating for them to come to these meetings 

because the decisions are “rubber stamped” anyway.  Holter agreed there needs to be 

additional conversations with the City and property owners to resolve these issues; 

however, she suggested that respect be given to each side.   

 

Commissioner Rohr commented that he can understand the pain of the residents on this 

topic. He gave the example that he purchased apartments in 1990, for $65,000 and now 

they are valued at $220,000 and not to mention all the specials that have come about. All 

these things come in to play.  There are many dimensions that go into property 

evaluations and he stated he has experienced, as a property owner, the same frustrations 

mentioned above.   

 

Commissioner Tibke asked Assessor Barta how long he has been using that particular 

software program.  Barta replied since 1979.  He explained there have been upgrades to 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 30, 2013 

Page 7 of 7 

the program. As he explained earlier there used to be five gradings for conditions and that 

has been expanded to ten.  He said there were about 2,600 notices sent out this year and 

last year there were only 450 were sent because the State allowed going to the 90% 

valuation so there was a big increase in value but the housing market is changing.   

 

City Assessor Barta recommended approval of the Board of Equalization Report as 

presented. He again announced that if any property owners including those not present at 

this time, wish to have a re-assessment, please contact the City Assessor’s office.  All re-

assessments will be reviewed at the next City Commission meeting.   

 

Commissioner Frank moved to approve the equalization assessments as determined by 

the City Assessor’s Office as presented.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  

 

Commissioner Rohr encouraged anyone who was not able to be present to be given an 

opportunity to express their concerns. They are to contact the City Assessor’s office to do 

so by June 7, 2013 in order to allow for any corrections to be made.  Assessor Barta 

stated that the County Board of Equalization is scheduled to meet on June 11, 2013 at 

6:00 p.m.    

 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Rohr:  Yes; Commissioner 

Van Beek:  Yes; Commissioner Tibke:  Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes. The motion 

passed.   

 

There being no further action to come before the Board, Commissioner Frank moved to 

recess the City Board of Equalization meeting at 6:53 p.m.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

 

 

   

Richard Barta, City Assessor 

 

 Mayor Arlyn Van Beek  

 
 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 1 of 16 
 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on May 21, 
2013 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  
Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Frank, and Braun. Department 
Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police Chief Bullinger, City Administrator 
Neubauer, Director of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development 
and Communications Director Huber, Engineering Project Manager Kim Fettig, and 
Building Official Lalim. Absent:  City Attorney Brown. 
 
B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Commissioner Tibke motioned to approve the 
Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Frank seconded the motion.  The motion received 
unanimous approval of the members present.  The motion passed.  
 
C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:   
(1)        Susan Beehler, Mandan City Resident came forward and stated that she is 
opposed to the property tax exemption that will be discussed under Old Business, Item 
No. 1: Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendation regarding application for 
property tax incentive by Prairie View Properties, LLC (Little Caesar’s Pizza), 310 6th 
Avenue SE.  Mayor Van Beek explained that when an application is made for an 
exemption there is a time period allowed for the building process. Since that did not 
occur in the 12-month period, a new application has been presented after the initial time 
period expired.   
 
(2)       Joel Melarvie, a Mandan City resident came forward and stated that he is opposed 
to granting property tax relief to retail sector businesses because it is his belief that 
businesses should not be granted relief from property taxes at the expense of the property 
tax payers.   
 
D. MINUTES: 
1.          Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 
meeting held on May 7 ,2013 Regular Board Meeting. Commissioner Braun moved to 
approve the minutes from the Board of City Commission meeting of May 7, 2013 as 
presented.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner 
Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  
Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.         Consider the annexation of Auditor’s Lot B in Government Lot 1 in the NE ¼ of 
Section 3, Township 138 North, Range 81 West. (First consideration of ordinance #1150) 
(See Ordinances No. 4).    Engineering Project Manager Fettig reviewed with the Board a 
request from Joseph Cicha to annex this parcel because when the annexation was done of 
the Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Addition, this small parcel was not annexed.   
 
Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing for consideration of the annexation 
of Auditor’s Lot B in Government Lot 1 in the NE ¼ of Section 3, Township 138 North, 
Range 81 West. (First consideration of ordinance #1150) (See Ordinances No. 4). 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 2 of 16 
He invited anyone for or against the request to come forward.  A second announcement 
was made to come forward to speak for or against the zone change.  Hearing none, this 
portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
2.        Consider a change of zoning of Lots 6-8 and part of Lot 5, Block 1 and Lots 4-9 
and part of Lots 3 & 10, Block 2 of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition in Section 22, Township 
139N, Range 81W from R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) and MC (Light Non-Nuisance 
Industrial/Heavy Commercial) to RM (Multi-Family Residential). (First consideration of 
ordinance #1151)(See Ordinances No. 5).  Engineering Project Manager Fettig reviewed 
with the Board a consideration for a change of zoning of Lots 6-8 and part of Lot 5, 
Block 1 and Lots 4-9 and part of Lots 3 & 10, Block 2 of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition so 
that the zoning will be consistent throughout this parcel of land.   
 
Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing for consideration of a change of 
zoning of Lots 6-8 and part of Lot 5, Block 1 and Lots 4-9 and part of Lots 3 & 10, Block 
2 of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition.  He invited anyone for or against the request to come 
forward.  A second announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against the 
zone change.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
3.         Consider a change of zoning for Lot 1, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2 of School 
District 5th Addition in Section 16, Township 139 North, Range 81 West from R7(Single-
Family Residential) and R3.2(Two-Family Residential) to RM (Multi-Family 
Residential). (First consideration of ordinance #1152) (See Ordinances No. 6).  
Engineering Project Manager Fettig reviewed with the Board a consideration to change 
the zoning for Lot 1, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2 of School District 5th Addition.  She 
explained that the remaining areas of the school property are already RM zoning.  This 
zoning change will then be consistent throughout this parcel of land.   
 
Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing for consideration of a change of 
zoning for Lot 1, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2 of School District 5th Addition.  He invited 
anyone for or against the request to come forward.  A second announcement was made to 
come forward to speak for or against the zone change.  Hearing none, this portion of the 
public hearing was closed.   
 
4.         Public Hearing to consider a five-year tax exemption for Bayside, LLC. (See New 
Business No. 1.)  Doug Lalim, Building Official reviewed with members a  
request for a 5-year tax exemption for the construction of a new commercial structure 
pursuant to NDCC 40-57.1.  This is for the construction of a new convenience store with 
gas station, car wash, liquor store and coffee shop.  Lalim stated there have been no 
written protests received in opposition to the request.  Morton County, Mandan School 
District and the Park Board have been notified and there have been no responses received 
from them.   
 
Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing to consider a five-year tax exemption 
for Bayside, LLC.  He invited anyone for or against the request to come forward.   
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 3 of 16 
Susan Beehler, a Mandan City Resident came forward and stated she wishes to submit 
written protest.  The application states $18,617 per year that this would be a property tax 
exemption.  Under this statute it’s now been changed under our legislature. SB2314 was 
put forward in our senate and it was to stop these types of property tax exemptions 
because they are not for primary sector businesses they are for businesses that are in our 
town that are established and are competing.  We had the Petro on Old Red Trail that was 
purchased by somebody and no property tax exemptions were asked for that business 
going in there.   MVP owns several Tesoro convenience store locations in our town and 
they built a new building and I believe they did not request a property tax exemption.  
The State Tax Department, the Property Tax Division, Marcy Dickerson, has told Beehler 
that exempt property is added in when determining the mill levy at the county level and 
the rest of the properties that are left to pay the bill.  As a homeowner, we have to use our 
property tax dollars instead of for safety such as fire and police protection; we are going 
to provide this business owner with a tight margin of success. That should not be the role 
of government.  As a tax payer if this is what the City chooses to do the state legislature 
has told me (Beehler) that we need to elect members to our commission that will do that.  
This law does not take effect until 2014. As City Commissioners are you going to wait 
until that law goes into effect or will you start being a good steward tonight?   
 
Tory Otto, a Lakewood resident came forward to speak in support of the request for 
exemption for Bayside, LLC.  He stated that there is an investor who also lives in the 
Lakewood area who is supporting the convenience store business for that area of the city.   
A Tier 2 exemption is being requested for this $2.5 billion dollar project.  He stated he 
observes Mandan dollars going across the street to Bismarck thus his reason for bringing 
this business to this area of the City of Mandan.   
 
Mayor Van Beek again announced this is a public hearing for consideration for a five-
year tax exemption for Bayside, LLC. He invited anyone else to come forward to speak 
for or against the zone change.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was 
closed.   
 
5.        Public Hearing to consider a two-year tax exemption for Zueger Properties, 
Goldstar Properties, Verity Homes. Doug Lalim, Building Official reviewed with 
members a request for a 2-year tax exemption for the construction of a new apartment 
building pursuant to NDCC 40-57.1.  Public notice was published in the Mandan News 
and there has been no opposition received.  Morton County, Mandan School District and 
the Park Board have been notified and there have been no responses received from them.  
Commissioner Rohr stated that he has a conflict of interest with one of the investors.  He 
excused himself from discussion on this matter.   
 
Susan Beehler, a Mandan resident for over 20 years and a Small Business owner stated 
that she objects to the exemption request from Zueger Properties, Goldstar Properties, 
Verity Homes.  She had a problem with filing this under a new or expanding business 
because apartment rentals are not new and expanding businesses.  She stated that both 
senators from our area voted in favor of SB 2314.  She stated that by granting these 
exemptions that each Mandan resident is giving that business $20 just to be here and the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 4 of 16 
taxpayers get nothing in return for the $20.  Going back to the math, you are pursuing a 
1% sales tax for a property tax dollar - if you were to give the property tax payers the 
credit due the amount they are bringing into the city instead of pursuing 1% sales tax.   
Beehler provided her position of sales tax dollar collections vs. property tax dollars 
questioning why the turn now taken has been towards the collection of sales tax.  Her 
position is that as a small business owner, every dollar taken out of her pocket (to support 
the tax exemptions), is one less dollar for her to put in her business.  Every dollar used by 
the City Commission (for tax exemptions) is one less dollar that can be used towards city 
services (police, fire, infrastructure costs).  $53,000 is like one mill which is what the 
City Commission is allowing this business in tax exemption.  She asked if the “Frank” 
who is one of the associates in this exemption request is related to Commissioner Frank.  
At this time Commissioner Braun called for a point of order.  Mayor Van Beek excused 
Ms. Beehler after explaining that the three minutes allowed for individual public 
comment was up.   Commissioner Frank clarified that she is of no relation to the “Frank” 
in this action other than the sharing of a same last name. 
 
Jeff Zueger, a participant of the project came forward to speak.  He stated that both he 
and his partner are long-time members of the community of Mandan.  He stated that this 
project will bring 30 family units into the community.  It already has been has been 
approved by the Mandan Architectural Review Committee (MARC).  He stated that the 
tax exemption is a key part of this $3M project and that the exemption is important to the 
success of the project. 
 
Commissioner Frank questioned Zueger as to what the plans are for the green space in 
this project? Zueger replied that it is their intention to comply with the MARC coverage 
square footage the size of the lot for green space for the occupants of the building while 
balancing that with the needs of off-street parking.  Commissioner Frank inquired as to 
the anticipated rent rates and the unit sizes?  Zueger replied that there will be 12-three 
bedroom units, 12-two bedroom units and 6 one-bedroom units with an anticipated 
average annual rental of $1,000 per month.  There has been no consideration for allotting 
any of the units towards affordable housing.   
 
Mayor Van Beek again announced this is a public hearing for consideration for a two-
year tax exemption for Zueger Properties, Goldstar Properties, and Verity Homes for the 
construction of a new apartment building and invited anyone else interested in speaking 
for or against the request to come forward.  Hearing none, this portion of the public 
hearing was closed.  Mayor Van Beek inquired of the Commission members if there were 
any more questions or comments from them.  
 
Commissioner Frank stated that she feels that the Commission has started to scale back 
on residential exemptions given and pointed out the impact that multi-family has on these 
types of requests that come before the Board.  She suggested the Commission consider 
asking Mr. Zueger if he would be comfortable designating a percentage of the units (one 
unit) to the potential incentive of offering affordable housing.  Commissioner Braun 
concurred with Commissioner Frank’s suggestion.  Zueger replied that he does not know 
enough about that process and what that would mean to the project. He stated that it is 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 5 of 16 
very difficult when putting together a project and having costs of new construction and 
still have it qualify potentially for affordable housing.  Not understanding the terms of 
what affordable housing means he stated it would be difficult to make a commitment at 
this time.  Commissioner Frank said that affordable housing is usually no more than 30% 
of adjusted income for our community.  Those statistics are available through the 
Housing Authority.  She said at this point it would only be a commitment for 
consideration rather than a formal commitment to a specific rent rate.  Zueger agreed to a 
consideration for commitment because of not understanding what the commitment would 
mean at this point.   
 
Commissioner Braun motioned to consider the two-year exemption for Zueger 
Properties, Goldstar Properties, and Verity Homes with further discussion.  
Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Commissioner Frank asked for clarification 
from Commissioner Braun as to what he meant by “consider the exemption with further 
discussion”  She said this is to approve the request for tax exemption.  Commissioner 
Braun said it would be for consideration of the commitment for affordable housing 
clarifying what he meant is that he would expect Zueger to research what affordable 
housing means and that he will come back at a later time and indicate a “yes” to an 
allotment for a percentage of the project to be applied towards affordable housing.   
 
Commissioner Tibke commented that Commissioner Braun’s statement is a new 
“addition” to the request for tax exemption from Zueger.  She suggested the Commission 
re-visit this to address the expectations of green space and affordable housing as part of 
the project.   
 
Mayor Van Beek called for a roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Recused; Commissioner 
Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  No; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 
Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
F.         BIDS: 
1.         Consider Awarding bid for 1981 Brush Truck to Dakota Speedway for $3,500.  
Jeff Wright, Director of Public Works, presented a request to accept the only bid that 
came in for the 1981 Brush Truck to Dakota Speedway for $3,500.   
 
Commissioner Frank moved to approve awarding the bid for 1981 Brush Truck to Dakota 
Speedway for $3,500.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: 
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; 
Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.  
 
G.        CONSENT AGENDA 
1.         Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2.         Consider approval of the following site authorizations for the Fort Abraham 
Lincoln Foundation from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014: (i) Midway Lanes; (ii) 
Broken Oar; (iii) Lonesome Dove; (iv) Seven Seas. 
4.          Consider the following abatements/exemptions: (i) Homestead Credit – Kurt 
Pfleger; (ii) Veteran Exemption – Sylvester Foote. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 6 of 16 
5.          Consider approval of the following site authorizations for the Cystic Fibrosis 
Association of ND from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014: (i) Stage Stop; (ii) Colonial 
Lounge. 
6.          Consider approval of site authorization for Horse Race ND at Dean’s Steakhouse 
from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. 
7.          Consider approval of site authorization for Mandan Baseball Club at Captain 
Freddy’s Riverside Restaurant & Bar from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. 
8.          Consider approval of the following site authorizations for the Mandan Hockey 
Club, Inc. from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014: (i) The Silver Dollar; (ii) Old Town 
Tavern; (iii) The Ridge Motel Corp; (iv)Vicky’s Sports Bar.  
 
Commissioner Frank moved to approve the Consent Agenda Items No. 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 
and 8 as presented.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; 
Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
No. 3:  Requested to be removed from the Agenda by Commissioner Frank:   Consider 
proclaiming May 18, 2013 as “STRIDES: Lions Walk for Diabetes Awareness Day. 
Mayor Van Beek read the Proclamation.  Commissioner Frank moved to approve 
proclaiming May 18, 2013 as “STRIDES: Lions Walk for Diabetes Awareness Day. 
Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of 
the members present.  
 
H.         OLD BUSINESS: 
1.          Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendation regarding application for 
property tax incentive by Prairie View Properties, LLC (Little Caesar’s Pizza), 310 6th 
Avenue SE.  Business Development & Communications Director Huber reviewed with 
the Board a request for a Tier 2 level tax exemption which is 100% for years 1-2, 75% 
year 3, 50% year 4, 25% year 5.The criteria for the recommendation is based on the jobs 
creation as well as the sales tax generation from this project so in this case two of the Tier 
2 level criteria have been met wherein the policy states it must meet at least one criteria.   
 
Commissioner Tibke indicated discussion on the tax exemption matters have occurred 
over the last few items of tonight’s meeting agenda items.  Unless any of the Board 
wishes to add anything further, she motioned to approve the application for property tax 
incentive by Prairie View Properties, LLC (Little Caesar’s Pizza), 310 6th Avenue SE for 
a Tier 2 level tax exemption which is 100% for years 1-2, 75% year 3, 50% year 4, 25% 
year 5 with the exemption being subject to a claw back agreement.  Commissioner Braun 
seconded the motion.    Commissioner Frank stated that since Commissioner Tibke was 
absent for discussion on this matter at the last meeting, she mentioned that as discussed 
earlier, she stands firm on her position that this business is a fast food business which she 
believes falls under Tier 1 criteria. There are an overwhelming number of competitors in 
the community and a pizza business does not fill a market gap but then again fast food 
being a part of Tier 1 she would recommend following the Tier 1, two-year exemption by 
following the policy.  Business Development Director Huber clarified the reason for the 
filling in the market gap criteria within the property tax exemption policy specifics 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 7 of 16 
pertaining to restaurants.  Under Tier 1 Fast Food counter service or drive-up only.  Tier 
2 limited services which are where you order food and the cashier brings the food to the 
table and Tier 3being a full service restaurant.  The reason is because restaurants were 
second behind general discount merchandise in terms of demands by the community in 
surveys conducted.  This was a model that the City of Moorhead was using which is in a 
similar situation with the City of Fargo as we have with the City of Bismarck.  This 
would allow a business to come in regardless of jobs creation and sales to meet those 
criteria.  In this case the applicant indicates they meet other criteria under Tier 2 beyond 
restaurant.  It was on that premise that the recommendation for a Tier 2 came from the 
Mandan Growth Fund Committee and it wasn’t meant to eliminate that opportunity for 
another fast food restaurant.  As explained at the last meeting, there have been very few 
fast food businesses that have come into the community within the last 15 years.  There 
have been no letters of protest or verbal comments in opposition to the exemption 
request.   
 
Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: No; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 
Frank:  No; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 
passed.     
 
2.          Discussion on Sidewalk Project 2013-03.  Engineering Project Manager Fettig 
provided a recap of this matter that was discussed at the last meeting.  “Part A” 
references new sidewalks, aprons, curb and gutter.  There have been no bids received as a 
result of re-advertising on May 3, 2013.  “Part B” references repairs to the existing 
sidewalks, aprons, curb and gutter.   The City Commission previously awarded the bid to 
Alliance Concrete in the amount of $79,195 to complete “Part B”.  Fettig requested 
direction from the Commission as to how to proceed with “Part A” for the new 
construction jobs.  She outlined three options, with the first option of notifying residents 
on the list that the City will not have a contractor for 2013.  Then going forward, she 
recommended that the City discontinue providing new sidewalk, aprons, curb and gutter; 
however, residents should be notified in advance of that change.   
 
Commissioner Rohr motioned to approve to notify the residents and developers that no 
bid was received for “Part A” of the Annual Sidewalk Project and that we discontinue 
future projects of this nature.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Frank pointed out that when residents are notified of this discontinuation 
of service that the Engineer’s Office be prepared to offer some recommendations at that 
time, if any.   
 
Mayor Van Beek addressed the audience and inquired if they had any ideas to resolve 
this matter.   
 
Dave White, Northern Sky Builders stated he is a contractor and has four houses to be 
completed.  He was in attendance at a Commission meeting last fall and again this spring 
and stated that he is aware of contractors who can do sidewalks and driveways on an 
individual basis.   He stated a concern that just discontinuing this service will not help the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 8 of 16 
problem. In fact it will make it worse.  He explained that small companies do not 
understand the bid process.  Commissioner Rohr stated that this project could not be 
piecemealed out.  Engineering Project Manager Fettig replied that by doing this project 
individually, it would create an excess burden on keeping track of the individual projects 
and it would not meet the statutory requirement of obtaining bids for these types of 
projects.  Commissioner Frank asked the audience if any contractors had any comments 
to add to this discussion or suggestions to resolve the matter.   
 
Shannon Reichenberg, a developer with Diversity Homes, came forward and commented 
that the concrete companies are too busy with basements for new home construction so 
taking on sidewalks and aprons will slow down the new home construction projects.  He 
asked if the sidewalks, etc. would go out for bids again next year or if the City will 
discontinue this project for good?  Mayor Van Beek replied that it would be up to the 
Commission to decide if they stay with the bidding process for future or discontinue the 
process all together.  
 
Jason Frank, a developer with Diversity Homes came forward and suggested that the 
bidding process start earlier next year. He would like to know how he is to present this to 
his customers that were told they would have sidewalks, curb, and gutter and now it will 
not be done.  He anticipates the customers will have problems coming up with the money 
if they have to do it on their own since the banks will not loan money for special 
assessments.  He stated it is not fair to his company to have to go back to his customers 
and tell them their home will have to wait or they will have to come up with the money 
for the sidewalks that they understood they would have been special assessed for.   
 
Commissioner Tibke questioned Mr. Frank as to how the City is to get bids to get the 
work done since they have attempted twice and no bids came in.  It was recommended 
that bids for this project be put out earlier in the year, in January, as opposed to waiting 
until March. City Administrator Neubauer stated that he did not think without a public 
notice and public bid process that the City could special assess any costs.  Jason Frank 
inquired if it would be possible if each contractor could submit a bid for their projects at 
the City’s set price and have their cement contractor do the work. Would that meet the 
criteria?  Administrator Neubauer commented that the City could go out for bids on any 
project and anyone would be welcome to bid on it – and put in a bid for “x” per square 
foot of concrete but it would still have to go through the public bid process.    
 
Commissioner Frank recommended a conversation be held with the Home Builder’s 
Association to see if there is similar interest, and we set up the bidding process, wherein 
the city would set up smaller segments of work available so that we can increase the 
opportunity for bidding.  Commissioner Tibke inquired if there was time to do some 
problem solving with Commissioner Rohr who holds this portfolio in order to come up 
with solutions.  Engineering Project Manager Fettig stated that the only comments she 
has received regarding this matter have been from the developers who are present here 
tonight.  She has heard no opposition.   
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 9 of 16 
Art Goldhammer from Red Door Homes came forward and stated that there are 
homeowners that need to get into their houses.  He requested that if the developer ends up 
completing the work, that the City work with them and not make it a difficult process by 
adding extra rules or regulations throughout the process.  He requested the City not 
abolish this process in future years.  He also requested it be brought back next year for 
consideration and put out for bids at an earlier timeframe.     
 
Commissioner Frank motioned to notify the residents and developers that the City did not 
receive a bid for “Part A” of the Annual Sidewalk Project and that this project be 
discontinued this year (2013).  (She volunteered to work with developers and the Home 
Builder’s Association and others to come up with a solution for future years.)  
Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.     
 
I.          NEW BUSINESS: 
1.          Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendation regarding application for 
property tax incentive by Bayside, LLC, for a gas station/convenience store at 2721 46th 
Avenue SE.  Business Development and Communications Director Huber stated that the 
Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) met on April 24, 2013, to review and consider the 
application from Bayside LLC.  They took a look at the benefits it would provide through 
the property tax exemption policy.  To be eligible for a Tier 2 exemption which is 100% 
in years 1 and 2, 75% year 3, 50% year 4, 25% year 5, the policy looks at criteria and one 
of them is jobs creation.  To meet a Tier 2 it needs to have the 3 base jobs and 1 job per 
$100,000 structural value subject to exemption.  In this case with a building projected to 
be valued at $925,000 that would be 9 employees for a total of 12.  The project is 
expected to employ a total of 13, 10 fulltime and 6 part time jobs.  The policy states that 
if it has 1 of the 2 criteria, the project would qualify.  The applicant expects $6 million 
annual gross sales.  Products sold referred to as “inside sales” are estimated at $675,000 
annually so that would generate $6,750 in local sales tax.  That hits an additional Tier 
1criteria. Regarding market gap, gasoline sales is one of the sales in the community that 
sales do surpass local demand.  There is no market gap in this situation but the MGF 
realized there is a geographical gap for this type of business in this area.  MGF did review 
the state law on this and the consensus was that this business would be more in 
competition with Bismarck enterprise than Mandan businesses and will enhance business 
in the Mandan community.  The MGF voted unanimously to approve a Tier 2 tax 
exemption that would amount to a $65,160 tax reduction of and that exemption would be 
subject to a claw back agreement that would require fulfillment of at least one of the Tier 
2 criteria by the first anniversary of occupancy indicating that if Tier 2 criteria are not 
met but the project meets a Tier 1 criteria the exemption would be scaled back.   
 
Commissioner Rohr addressed (Beehler’s) question “why has government been involved 
in providing subsidies in areas if need be”.  He said that we would have to refer back to  
the late 70’s and early 80’s when there was a lot of competition with businesses and 
industries, realizing that you have to have businesses come into your community or your  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 10 of 16 
community will not grow.  Economic development got a real good foothold at that time 
and the government got involved by purchasing lands for businesses because some got so 
far into debt that the government helped to develop and build infrastructure to 
accommodate the business development plans.  That became risky because if that 
particular business went out of business then the City was left with a track of land that 
had full infrastructure and nothing they could do but pay to keep it up.  That was 
considered a high risk of economic development.  There are levels of degrees of 
development and one of the current ways to address economic growth is to provide 
incentives, not to borrow money.  Commissioner Rohr went into more detail of the 
history of how economic growth has occurred over the years and where it is going with 
regard to the City of Mandan.  He stated that it will be in the best interests and the health 
of the community to resolve these matters which is not an easy task.  He stated he does 
not believe the City will in any way reduce the number of police or fire forces under any 
circumstances because that is a public community safety issue.    
 
Commissioner Tibke commented that she has been involved with these discussions on 
and off since 2003 when she was elected to the City Commission.  She reviewed some of 
the challenges that Mandan has been faced with over time with Bismarck retailers as 
competition.  Over the years exemptions have been given to try to attract larger retails to 
bring more services and retail and also to increase the sales tax dollars which buys down 
property tax and infrastructure costs.  Primary sector is something you always want to 
increase in your community.  Since at least 2003 the property tax exemptions have been a 
resource for this plan.  The plan that went into effect on January 1, 2013, was far more 
prescriptive than previous years.  But now we are seeing a change in the economy, an 
increase in population, debate on housing, etc.  Thus we participated in and approved of a 
much more prescriptive policy than was in place.  Where is the future going to go as far 
as development?  Maybe the policy will have to be revisited because in the last six 
months things have changed.  All of us commissioners have had our hands in developing 
this policy with the guidance of the Mandan Growth Fund Committee, Development 
Director Huber and City Administrator Neubauer.  This matter has been given a lot of 
time and energy for a lot of specific reasons that are aligned with what our community 
needs are.   
 
Business Development and Communications Director Huber clarified that there is no 
mileage criteria attached to the policy.  The project does meet Tier 2 level criteria on the 
basis of job creations as presented and meets a Tier 1 level for generation of local sales 
tax.   
 
Commissioner Frank stated that the exemptions granted are contingent on what the state 
dictates.  We will be able to offer primary sector exemption to the extent the City has 
done previously.   Beyond that, they are starting to tie our hands.  It will be up to the 
citizens of Mandan to decide what exemptions are to be granted except primary sector 
exemptions and that only includes retail exemptions that meet a litmus test.  The Board 
will need to be aware of the changes.  With this project in particular, we have a policy 
that grants us flexibility.  Going forward there will have to be an ordinance or resolution.    



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 11 of 16 
She suggested that the Commission focus and re-focus on what is to be done with the 
exemption policy and to start checking off the businesses that apply and start scaling back 
on the exemptions.   
 
Commissioner Braun commented that our environment is changing.  We want to bring 
people and businesses into Mandan and we want to offer them incentives to come to 
Mandan as opposed to Bismarck.  We want primary sector.  They are not knocking at our 
door but if they did we would give them incentives.  We have a lot of retailers and those 
retailers move sales tax around.  We will not be able to bring property tax dollars down if 
we do not offset the sales tax.  The only way to do that is to have businesses come in to 
offset that.  He recommended going back to re-evaluate the exemption policy and perhaps 
tighten it up.  Based on the policy the Commission is required to adhere to the policy 
until it is changed.   
 
Mayor Van Beek commented that he believes we have to follow the policy that is in 
place.  He pointed out that the Mandan residents spend their dollars in Bismarck so 
Bismarck is gaining sales tax dollars to buy down their property taxes and street 
improvement costs because Mandan does not have the Wal-Mart’s and other businesses 
that Bismarck has in place.  The tax exemption policy is in place to entice businesses that 
may be willing to take the risk to grow their business and flourish in Mandan.   
 
Commissioner Rohr commented that if the City were to change its tax exemption policy, 
due notice would be provided and the policy would just not be cut off right now.   
 
Commissioner Frank commented that it is up to the Commission’s discretion as to 
whether or not the criteria meet these tiers.  The request before the Commission is for a 
convenience store.  She suggested the Commission re-look at what kinds of businesses 
the residents have voiced their opinions on.  She reminded the Commission that it is up to 
their discretion and the residents are relying on the Commission to make smart decisions 
not just based on the policy and previous decisions.  Commissioner Braun concurred with 
Commissioner Frank.  Commissioner Tibke stated that following the policy and 
reviewing the application is her suggestion to handle this request for tax exemption.  
Commissioner Frank noted that the criteria is used as a guideline which is in italics as 
part of that exemption and given the fact they do meet some of the tiers, she 
recommended discussion on other factors that impact this exemption request.  It is a 
convenience store and she recommended the Commission be selective when granting 
exemptions. 
 
Commissioner Frank moved to deny the application for property tax incentive by 
Bayside, LLC, for a gas station/convenience store at 2721 46th Avenue SE.  There was no 
second to the motion.  The motion died for lack of a second.  
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the application for property tax incentive by 
Bayside, LLC, for a gas station/convenience store at 2721 46th Avenue SE. 
Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Commissioner Frank motioned to amend the 
Motion to include that it be granted a Tier 2 tax exemption for property tax incentive by 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 12 of 16 
Bayside, LLC, for a gas station/convenience store at 2721 46th Avenue SE.  
Commissioner Tibke seconded the Amended Motion.  
 
Commissioner Rohr moved to an Amendment to the Motion that was made for the Tier 2 
to reduce it to a Tier 1 consideration for tax exemption.   There was no second to the 
Amendment to the Motion.  The Amendment to the Motion died for lack of second.  
 
Mayor Van Beek returned to the Original Motion to approve the Tier 2 property tax 
exemption for Bayside, LLC. He asked for further discussion on the Original Motion. 
Hearing none, roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: No; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 
Commissioner Frank:  No; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  
The motion passed.   
 
2.          Consider appointments to the Community Beautification Committee.  City 
Administrator Neubauer presented a request from the Mandan Tomorrow Leadership, 
Pride and Image Committee to reactivate the Community Beautification Committee and 
that it include property owner or citizen representation.  There were 6 spots open and 6 
parties were interested in the positions.  The candidates are:  Cole Garman, Youth 
Commission, Damian Huettl, Laurie Leingang, Thomas Mousel, Lori Sager, and Jason 
Steffenhagen.  Upon appointment, the Committee will reconvene.  
 
Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the appointments to the Community 
Beautification Committee as follows:  Cole Garman, Youth Commission, Damian Huettl, 
Laurie Leingang, Thomas Mousel, Lori Sager, and Jason Steffenhagen.  Commissioner 
Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 
Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 
Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
3.          Consider bond refinancing for the Mandan Municipal Airport Authority.  Jim 
Lawler, Airport Authority Manager requested permission to renew the Mandan Airport 
Authority Bond consolidation and refinancing.  He reported that the remodeling project at 
the airport is in progress.  He offered to provide tours for anyone interested.  He 
introduced Mike Manstrom from Dougherty & Company to explain the bond renewals.  
Manstrom stated that the Airport has two outstanding loans each in the amount of 
$400,000 and they can be refunded at 5.41% and 4.75%.  The interest rates on the loans 
can be cut down to about 2% and save the airport authority approximately $100,000.  
There is 10 years remaining on the loans and their debt service will be cut $10,000 per 
year.  Present value is estimated at 13% and interest norms anything around 4% you vote 
to go forward with.   
 
Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Mandan Municipal Airport Authority Bond 
consolidation and refinancing.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; 
Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 13 of 16 
4.          Consider resolution regarding north annexation.  City Administrator Neubauer 
reviewed with the Board a request to approve the resolution regarding north annexation 
of approximately 1,000 acres north of the middle school.  He stated that if this area is 
annexed the City can begin planning for water, sewer and storm water more effectively 
and efficiently.  He requested the Board grant City Attorney Brown permission to 
complete the process for the resolution for annexation to be presented at the June 4, 2013 
meeting. If approved, the residents would have 30 days to protest the annexation of which 
75% of the property area would have to agree to the annexation to make that happen.  
The information was forwarded to Dawn Rhone, (Morton County Auditor), and Mike 
Kemnitz of the Missouri River West Water Systems.   
 
Commissioner Rohr moved to direct City Attorney Brown to prepare a resolution of 
annexation to be considered at the June 4, 2013, City Commission meeting. 
Commissioner Frank seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
5.          Consider the creation of, approval of the feasibility report for, approve the plans 
and specifications, approve engineer’s report, direct advertisement for bids and approve 
sufficiency of petition for Street Improvement District No. 182, Project No. 2013-16 
(Meadow Ridge 1st Addition). (See Resolution No. 7).  Engineering Project Manager 
Fettig reviewed with the Board a request for the creation of, approval of the feasibility 
report for, approve the plans and specifications, approve engineer’s report, direct 
advertisement for bids and approve sufficiency of petition for Street Improvement 
District No. 182.  The developers indicated they will be building twin-homes on those 
lots.   
 
Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the creation of, approval of the Engineer’s Report, 
to approve the plans and specifications for, approve the sufficiency of petition, feasibility 
report and advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 182, Project No. 
2013-16 (Meadow Ridge 1st Addition). Commissioner Frank seconded the motion.  Roll 
call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
6.          Consider identifying and prioritizing future street maintenance projects within 
the City of Mandan.  Director of Public Works Wright presented updates regarding future 
projects within the City of Mandan on arterial and collector streets with money received 
from the State of North Dakota this year in the amount of $845,000.  The funding was 
provided for street repairs above and beyond normal maintenance of the streets.  He 
reviewed the asphalt and cement street recommendations at 46th Avenue Southeast; 2nd 
Street NW and Collins Avenue and 40th Avenue Southeast.   The minor concrete repairs 
that can now be completed came from stimulus money from before which includes areas 
on Main Street; Mandan Avenue NE; 10th Avenue SW and 6th Avenue SE.  All of these 
streets are Urban Road Funding so we will be working with the DOT priority list for 
funding.  Wright requested a continuation of these projects.  
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 14 of 16 
Commissioner Frank moved to approve to continue estimating and planning to complete 
these proposed projects and bring information back to the City Commission for final 
approval at a later date.   Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; 
Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 
1.          Consider second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No. 1147, An 
ordinance annexing certain adjoining lands to the City of Mandan, North Dakota, and 
extending the corporate boundaries thereof  (tract of land being a part of Section 
2,Township138 North, Range 81West).  Commissioner Frank moved to approve the  
second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No. 1147, An ordinance annexing 
certain adjoining lands to the City of Mandan, North Dakota, and extending the corporate 
boundaries thereof  (tract of land being a part of Section 2,Township138 North, Range 
81West). 
 
Commissioner Braun seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
2.          Consider second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No.1148 Zone 
Change for a part of Government Lot 1 and the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 3, Township 
138N, Range 81W (proposed Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Addition) – An ordinance to 
amend and reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to 
District Boundaries and Zoning Map. Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the  
second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No.1148 Zone Change for a part of 
Government Lot 1 and the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 3, Township 138N, Range 81W 
(proposed Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Addition) – An ordinance to amend and reenact 
section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and 
Zoning Map. 
 
Commissioner Frank seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
3.          Consider second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No.1149 Zone 
Change for Government Lot 2, less Outlot A and the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ in Section 3, 
Township 138 North, Range 81West (Macedonia Hills Masterplan) – An ordinance to 
amend and reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to 
District Boundaries and Zoning Map. Commissioner Braun moved to approve the  
second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No.1149 Zone Change for 
Government Lot 2, less Outlot A and the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ in Section 3, Township 138 
North, Range 81West (Macedonia Hills Masterplan) – An ordinance to amend and 
reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District 
Boundaries and Zoning Map. 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 15 of 16 
Commissioner Frank seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
4.          Consider first consideration of Ordinance No. 1150, An ordinance annexing 
certain adjoining lands to the City of Mandan, North Dakota, and extending the 
corporate boundaries thereof  (tract of land being a part of Section 3,Township 138 
North, Range 81West).  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the first consideration of 
Ordinance No. 1150, An ordinance annexing certain adjoining lands to the City of 
Mandan, North Dakota, and extending the corporate boundaries thereof  (tract of land 
being a part of Section 3,Township 138 North, Range 81West). 
 
Commissioner Frank seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
5.          Consider first consideration of Ordinance No.1151 Zone Change for parts of 
Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition – An ordinance to amend and reenact section 21-03-02 of the 
Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map.  
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No.1151 
Zone Change for parts of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition – An ordinance to amend and 
reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District 
Boundaries and Zoning Map.   
 
Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
6.          Consider first consideration of Ordinance No.1152 Zone Change for School 
District 5th Addition – An ordinance to amend and reenact section 21-03-02 of the 
Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map. 
Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No.1152 
Zone Change for School District 5th Addition – An ordinance to amend and reenact 
section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and 
Zoning Map. 
 
Commissioner Frank seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
7.          Consider the Resolutions creating district, approving engineer’s report, 
determining sufficiency of protest, approving the plans and specifications and directing 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 182, Project No. 2013-16 
(Meadow Ridge 1st Addition).  Commissioner Frank moved to approve the Resolutions 
creating district, approving engineer’s report, determining sufficiency of protest, 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of May 21, 2013 

Page 16 of 16 
approving the plans and specifications and directing advertisement for bids for Street 
Improvement District No. 182, Project No. 2013-16 (Meadow Ridge 1st Addition). 
 
Commissioner Braun seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 
Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
K.          OTHER BUSINESS 
There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 
Commissioner Frank moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:55 p.m. Commissioner Tibke 
seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 
The motion passed.  
 
   
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 
 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  
President, Board of City 
Commissioners 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a 100% two year tax exemption for a new 

apartment building pursuant to North Dakota Century Code 40-57.1. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  JDS Holding, LLP is asking for an exemption for 

the construction of a new apartment building. The Notice to Competitors was published 

in the May 3rd and May 10th of the Mandan News and no competitors have submitted a 

written protest. Notices were also sent via email to Morton County, Mandan School 

District and Mandan Park District on April 30, 2013. 

 

SHORT DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:  JDS Holding, LLP is proposing a 42-unit (2 

& 3 Bedroom) multi-family apartment building with garages.  

  

# OF JOBS TO BE CREATED: N/A 

 

This parcel is also known as Parcel #4242 A at 2843 Sunset Dr. NW on Lot 3A of Lot 

3 of Block 1, Missouri Valley Addition. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $84,188 per year for a two-year total of $168,376. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of a Property Tax Incentive for New or Expanding 

Businesses for JDS Holding, LLP with a 100% exemption (Tier 1 level) for the two years 

will be determined by the Mandan City Commission.   

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: May 3, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept. 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Doug Lalim, Building Official/Assessor 

PRESENTER: Doug Lalim, Building Official/Assessor 

SUBJECT: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding 

Businesses for JDS Holding, LLP 

 

  

 Public Hearing No. 1  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 2 of 9 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: A motion to approve a Property Tax Incentive for New or 

Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, LLP for a 100% exemption (Tier 1 level) for the 

two years to be determined by the Mandan City Commission. 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 

Subject: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding Businesses for JDS Holding, 

LLP 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  This is a review and possible award of bids for Street 
Improvement District No. 176, Project 2012-20 (McKenzie Drive SE). 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Bids were received on May 28 for the project and 
Northern Improvement Company was the low bidder.  The bid amount was 
$1,240,657.70.  The Engineer's estimate was $1,422,246.00.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   1.  Letter to Recommend  
                                    2.  Bid Tabulation 
                                    3.  Opinion of Probable Cost 
                                    4.  Preliminary Assessment Schedules 
    5.  District Map 
                                    6.  Resolution to Award Bid 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The Project will be paid for by special assessments from the 
benefiting properties within the District.  
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  
   review.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I would recommend awarding the project. 
 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 30, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Consider award of bids for Street Improvement 

District No. 176, Project 2012-20(McKenzie 
Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
 

 

  

BID #1 & Res. #4 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 
Subject:  Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 176, Project 2012-21 
(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
Page 2 of 7 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to award the bid to Northern Improvement 
Company as the low bidder of Street Improvement District 176 Project 2012-20 in the 
amount of $1,240,657.70. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 
Subject:  Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 176, Project 2012-21 
(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 
Subject:  Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 176, Project 2012-21 
(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
Page 4 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
        



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 
Subject:  Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 176, Project 2012-21 
(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
Page 5 of 7 

                                                    
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 
Subject:  Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 176, Project 2012-21 
(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 
Subject:  Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 176, Project 2012-21 
(McKenzie Drive SE, Genoa Court SE & 34th Avenue SE). 
Page 7 of 7 
 
                                                       RESOLUTION  

APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR  
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 176 

(Project No. 2012-20)(McKenzie Drive SE, 34th Avenue SE & Genoa Court SE) 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
(the “City”), as follows: 

 
 1. It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore 

caused Notice for Advertisement for Bids to be made for an improvement 
Street Improvement District No. 176 of said City, and has duly and 
publicly opened and considered said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 

 
 2. Said improvement is hereby ordered to be constructed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications therefore as heretofore 
adopted by this Board pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 

 
 3. It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible 

bidder for various categories of the work, material and skill required for 
said improvement is Northern Improvement Company whose bid provides 
for the construction of said improvement at a total estimated base price of 
$1,240,657.70. 

 
 4. The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan and City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and 
enter into a contract with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form 
prescribed by Sections 40-22-35 and 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, 
provided that said bidder shall within ten (10) days from this date execute 
said contract and a construction bond conditioned in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 40-22-30 and 40-22-32 of said Code. 

       
Dated this 4th day of June, 2013 
 
 
                                                                        _________________________                                             
      Arlyn Van Beek, President of the 
      Board of City Commissioners 
 
Attest: 
                                               
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Award the base Contract along with Alternate No. 1 to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc. 

contingent upon review and approval by the ND Department of Health and upon constructing the lift station outside the 

proposed beltway corridor according to the Bismarck-Mandan Regional North South Beltway Corridor Study of 2009. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The proposed project is a project taken from the City Master Plan to abandon 

the existing Roughrider Estates lagoon system and replace it with a regional lift station.  We received two bids with the 

low bidder being Kvamsdal Construction with a total bid of $822,422, the Engineer’s Estimate for the total project was 

$743,000.  The increase in cost is not out of line considering how busy everyone is at this point with the economy and 

weather delays.  The project is funded through a State Revolving Fund low interest loan and can be re-submitted with 

the actual cost of the project for additional funding.  The initial plan was to have the lift station on the east side of 56 th 

Ave NW, but the beltway corridor and proposed interchange have caused us to reconsider the location of the lift 

station.  The location can be changed and will be constructed in the most optimal location, outside of the corridor.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Recommendation letter from AE2S, Notice of Award, Bid Tab Summary Sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The project is funded by State Revolving Fund low interest loan and has been built into our 

present utility rates. 

 

STAFF IMPACT: Minimal. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A   

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Award the base Contract along with Alternate No. 1 to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc. for 

$822,422, contingent upon review and approval by the ND Department of Health and upon constructing the lift station 

outside the proposed beltway corridor. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to award the base Contract along with Alternate No. 1 to Kvamsdal Construction, 

Inc. for $822,422, contingent upon review and approval by the ND Department of Health and upon constructing the lift 

station outside the proposed beltway corridor. 

 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: May 30, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates 

Collection System Extension project to Kvamsdal 

Construction, Inc. 

 

  

Bid No. 2 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 

Subject:  Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System Extension project 

to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc.  

Page 2 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 

Subject:  Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System Extension project 

to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc.  

Page 3 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 

Subject:  Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System Extension project 

to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc.  

Page 4 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 

Subject:  Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System Extension project 

to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc.  

Page 5 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 

Subject:  Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System Extension project 

to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc.  

Page 6 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 

Subject:  Consider awarding the Roughrider Estates Collection System Extension project 

to Kvamsdal Construction, Inc.  

Page 7 of 7 

 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider for approval the final plat of the Replat of Lot 
3, Block 1, Lakewood Commercial Park 2nd Addition. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Art Goldhammer, Red Door Homes, 
for final plat approval of the Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lakewood Commercial Park 2nd 
Addition.  The Planning & Zoning Commission voted unanimously to approve the plat on 
May 28, 2013.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1.  Office Report 
                                 2.  Final Plat 
                                 3.  Vicinity Map   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 
for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the approval of the subject plat. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the final plat of the Replat of Lot 3, Block 
1, Lakewood Commercial Park 2ndAddition. 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 29, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Engineering & Planning 
PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Consider for approval the final plat of the Replat 

of Lot 3, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 2nd 
Addition. 

 

  

Consent No. 1 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of the Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lakewood 
Commercial Park 2nd Addition.  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

MANDAN PLANNING OFFICE REPORT 
May 29, 2013 

 
Applicant:     Arthur Goldammer, ReDDoor Homes 
 
Owner:     same 
 
Requested Action:    final plat approval 
 
Name of Subdivision: Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lakewood Commercial Park 2nd Addition    
 
Legal Description:    Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lakewood Commercial Park 2nd Addition 

in Section 6, Township 138N, Range 80W 
 
 
Location:    McKenzie Drive SE 
 
Parcel Acreage:   4.48 acres 
 
Number of Blocks: 1  Number of Lots:     23 
 
Existing Land Use:   vacant 
 
Proposed Land Use:  residential 
 
Adjacent Land Use: residential, water 
 
Existing Zoning:     CB Restricted (Heavy Commercial) Restrictions: Single-Family 
Residential, Retail Group B and Service Group B prohibited. Setback restrictions. 
 
Proposed Zoning:       same 
 
Adjacent Zoning:   CB (Heavy Commercial) and CB Restricted, R7 (Single-Family 
Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) 
 
Fee Required: $250.00   Date Received:  April 1, 2013  
 
Adjacent Property Owner Notification:  May 14, 2013 
 
Dates of Legal Notices:  May 10 & 17, 2013 
 
Recommendation:   The Planning Office recommends approval. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of the Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lakewood 
Commercial Park 2nd Addition.  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of the Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lakewood 
Commercial Park 2nd Addition.  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider for approval the final plat of Meadows 7th 
Addition. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Lee Roy Mitzel for final plat 
approval of Meadows 7th Addition.  The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the plat on May 28, 2013.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1.  Office Report 
                                 2.  Final Plat 
                                 3.  Vicinity Map   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 
for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the approval of the subject plat. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the final plat of Meadows 7th  Addition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 29, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Engineering & Planning 
PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Consider for approval the final plat of Meadows 

7th  Addition. 

 

  

Consent No. 2 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of Meadows 7th  Addition.  
Page 2 of 4 

MANDAN PLANNING OFFICE REPORT 
May 29, 2013 

 
Applicant:     Lee Roy Mitzel 
 
Requested Action:    Final Plat Approval 
 
Name of Subdivision: Meadows 7th Addition    
 
Legal Description:    A portion of Auditor’s Lot 3 in the SW ¼ of Section 8, Township  
                                    81W, Range 81W 
 
Location:    Wildrye Circle NW 
 
Parcel Acreage:   5.8 
 
Number of Blocks: 2  Number of Lots:     20 
 
Existing Land Use:   vacant 
 
Proposed Land Use:  single-family residential 
 
Adjacent Land Use: vacant and single-family residential   
 
Existing Zoning:     R7 (Single-Family Residential) 
 
Proposed Zoning:       same 
 
Adjacent Zoning:   R7 (Single-Family Residential) and R3.2 (Two-Family 
                                    Residential)  
 
Fee Required: $250.00   Date Received:  May 1, 2013  
 
Adjacent Property Owner Notification:  May 21, 2013 
 
Dates of Legal Notices:  May 10 and 17, 2013 
 
Recommendation: The Planning Office recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of Meadows 7th  Addition.  
Page 3 of 4 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of Meadows 7th  Addition.  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider for approval the final plat of River Garden 
Addition. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Riverwest Development for final 
plat approval of River Garden Addition.  The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the plat on May 28, 2013.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1.  Office Report 
                                 2.  Final Plat 
                                 3.  Vicinity Map   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 
for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the approval of the subject plat. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the final plat of River Garden Addition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 29, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Engineering & Planning 
PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Consider for approval the final plat of River 

Garden Addition. 

 

  

Consent No. 3 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of River Garden Addition.  
Page 2 of 4 

MANDAN PLANNING OFFICE REPORT 
May 29, 2013 

 
Applicant:     Riverwest Development, LLC 
 
Owner:     same 
 
Requested Action:    Final Plat Approval 
 
Name of Subdivision: River Garden Addition    
 
Legal Description:    Lot 1, Block 3, School District 5th Addition in Section 21,  
                                    Township 139N, Range 81W 
 
Location:    southwest corner of 27th Street NW and Sunset Drive 
 
Parcel Acreage:   3.10 
 
Number of Blocks: 1  Number of Lots:     3 
 
Existing Land Use:   vacant 
 
Proposed Land Use:  commercial 
 
Adjacent Land Use: school and commercial  
 
Existing Zoning:         CB (Heavy Commercial)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Proposed Zoning:       same 
 
Adjacent Zoning:   CB (Heavy Commercial), CC (Heavy Commercial), RM (Multi-   
                                    Family Residential)  
 
Fee Required: $250.00   Date Received:  May 3, 2013  
 
Adjacent Property Owner Notification:  May 14, 2013 
 
Dates of Legal Notices:  May 17 and 24, 2013 
 
Recommendation:   The Planning Office recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of River Garden Addition.  
Page 3 of 4 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval the final plat of River Garden Addition.  
Page 4 of 4 
 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider for approval a variance in the setback 
requirements for Lots 11 & 12, Terra Vallee 6th Addition. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Dennis Meyer for a variance in the 
front yard setback from 25 feet to 18.5 feet.  These lots drop off considerably in the back 
and would cause a hardship to build on these lots. This variance also allows 28th Street 
NW to continue in front of the lot. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the variance on May 28, 2013.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1.  Variance Application 
                                 2.  Vicinity Map  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 
for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the approval of the variance. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the setback variance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: May 28, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: June 4, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Engineering & Planning 
PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Consider for approval a variance for Lots 11 & 

12, Terra Vallee 6th Addition. 

 

  

Consent No. 4 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval a variance in Lots 11 & 12, Terra Vallee 6th Addition. 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider for approval a variance in Lots 11 & 12, Terra Vallee 6th Addition. 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 



I Consent No.sl ~-----------~ 
GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION G-____ L __ )_ 

Site License Number 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL (Attorney General Use Only) 
SFN 17996 (02-2011) 

Mandan Baseball Club. Inc. is hereby authorized to conduct games of 
(Full. Legal Name of Gaming Organization) 

chance under the license granted by the Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following 

location: Westside Bar & Grill/Mulliaans the address of which is: 

501 Burlin!lton Street SE Mandan 58554 Morton 
(Street) (City) (Zip Code) (County) 

Date(s) Authorized: Beginning _7""/-'-1'"'/1"'3 __________ _ Ending _6_13_0_11_4 _________ _ 

Specific location where games of chance will be conducted .<!ill! played at the site (required): Games will be olaved in 
the southwestern area in the Westside Bar and the northeastern area in Mulliaans Bar. 

Number of twenty-one tables (required) (if zero, enter "O") : ____ 2 _____________ _ 

RESTRICTIONS: (to be completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local governing body) 

1. Days of week of gaming operations --------------------------
2. Hours of gaming 
3. List each specific game type prohibited ________________________ _ 

Attorney General Date Signature of City/County Auditor Date 

INSTRUCTIONS: 

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files. 

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization. 

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed, Site Authorization to the Office of Attorney General with any 
other applicable licensing forms for final approval. 

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO: 

Office of Attorney General 
Licensing Section 
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040 
Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240 



RENTAL AGREEMENT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
SFN 9413 (Rev. 06-2010) 

STATE USE ONLY 
SITE LICENSE NO. 

G-____ L __ )_ 

Site Owner (Lessor) Site Name Site Phone Number 

J & C Investments, Inc. Westside/mullioans 1701) 663-3020 
Site Address I City State I Zip Code County 

501 Burlinoton Street Se Mandan ND 58554 Morton 
Organization {Lessee) I Rental Period Monthly Rent Amount 

Mandan Baseball Club, Inc. 7/1/2013 to 6/30/2014 

1. Is Bingo going to be conducted at this site? ~ No D Yes 
1a. !f "Yes" to number 1 above, is Bingo the primary game conducted? If "Yes," enter the $ 

monthly rent amount to be paid. Then answer questions 2 H 7 but do not enter any rent D No D Yes 
amounts. 

2. Is a raffle drawing going to be conducted at this site? ~ No D Yes $ 

3. Is Prize Boards involving a dispensing devtce conducted at this site? ~ No D Yes $ 

4. Is TwentyHOne conducted at this site? 

D ~Yes $ 
Number of Tables with wagers up to $5 X Rent per Table $ No 

Number of Tables with wagers over $5 2 X Rent per Table$ 300.00 $ 600.00 

5. Is Padd!ewheels conducted at this site? @ D X Rent per Table $ No Yes $ 
Number of Tables 

6. Is Pull Tabs involving both a jar bar and dispensing device conducted at this site? D No ~ Yes $ 200.00 If "Yes," skip questions 7 & 8. 

7. ls Pull Tabs involving only a jar bar conducted at this site? D No D Yes $ 

8. Is Pull Tabs involving only a dispensing device conducted at this site? D No D Yes $ 

Total Monthly Rent 

TERMS OF RENTAL AGREEMEN'P. $ 800.00 

This RENTAL AGREEMENT is between the Owner (LESSOR) and Organization (LESSEE) that will be leasing the site to conduct games of chance. 

The LESSOR agrees that no game will be directly operated as part of the lessor's business. 

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household members, {management), (management's) spouse, or an 
employee of the lessor who is in a position to approve or deny a lease may not conduct games at any of the organization's sites and, except for officers and 
board of directors members who did not approve the !ease, may not play games at that site. However, a bar employee may redeem a winning pull tab or prize 
boards involving a dispensing device and sen raffle tickets or sports pool chances on a board on behalf of an organization. 

The LESSOR agrees that the lessor's oncall or temporary or permanent employee will not, directly or indirectly, conduct games at the site as an employee of 
the lessee on the same day the employee is working in the area of the bar where alcoholic beverages are dispensed or consumed. 

If the LESSEE provides the Lessor with a temporary loan of funds for redeeming pull tabs or prize boards, or both, involving a dispensing device, tho Lessor 
agrees to repay the entire loan lmmodlatoly when the lessee discontinues using tho device at the site. 

The LESSOR agrees not to interfere with or attempt to influence the lessee's selection of games, determination of prizes, including a bingo jackpot prize, or 
disbursement of net proceeds. 

The LESSOR agrees not to loan money to, provide gaming equipment to, or count drop box cash for the lessee. 

At the LESSOR'S option, the lessee agrees that this rental agreement may be automatically terminated if the lessee's gaming license is suspended at this slte 
for more I~!\ f//een days or revok~~· 

: ,.. //" . ,.., 
) 

Signatur of 
faJSOr ' ·-li ;) TIU~ j 

·~ .f/f #!If! 0 (j/1)1.1ii110if It) 
Date 

/ c:y lk \?:, -.. _/,J1rr-~ .... ;:ff·,/ _J/. ,,,..,,--... _. _ _,-, r--!v 
Signature of LAee\(Top r:;J'-•ve OffictJ> u litfS L Date 

fl . ..;f Q, <l•··~ ;-i-~ , .. ~c..\.,.....,.i_ . .,:-,.-(.(..c... (>:)·JI .. 

(over) 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider a 20% Homestead Credit exemption for the year 
2012 due to meeting all criteria.   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Mrs. Glasser meets all qualifications according to 
the guidelines established by the State for a 20% exemption through the Homestead  
Credit program. 
 
This parcel is also known as E 90’  of Lot 5, Block 7, Meads Addition at 209 10th Ave. 
NW on Parcel #3966. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Application. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $218.  Please note that this amount is reimbursed by 
the State and the City is not actually losing any revenue. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of the requested 20% Homestead Credit exemption 
for the year 2012. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:   I recommend a motion to approve the request by Mrs. Glasser 
to receive a 20% Homestead Credit exemption for the year 2012 due to meeting all 
criteria according to the guidelines established through the State. 
 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 20, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Doug Lalim, Building Official/Assessor 
PRESENTER: Doug Lalim, Building Official/Assessor 
SUBJECT: Homestead Credit Exemption for Lorraine 

Glasser 

 

  

Consent No. 6  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 
Subject:  Homestead Credit Exemption for Lorraine Glasser 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 
Subject:  Homestead Credit Exemption for Lorraine Glasser 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013 
Subject:  Homestead Credit Exemption for Lorraine Glasser 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
PURPOSE: Consider to waive the competitive bidding requirement for the 
replacement of the air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall). 
 
BACKGROUND: The air handling unit at the Memorial Building is well over 30 
years old no longer holds Freon as it should. When firing up the unit this spring, 
it was determined that 35% of the Freon would need replacing and EPA 
regulations come into play. 
 
Building maintenance staff has been able to repair the unit each spring for many 
years, however, its useful life has come to an end. 
 
The lead time on replacement of the unit is 6-7 weeks and we are asking that 
due to the nature of the season (summer) that we waive the competitive bidding 
requirement as allowed under the Mandan Municipal Code Section 3-01-04(1). 
 
We have obtained three bids for replacement of the unit.  
 
The City has received three proposals: 

• Dirk Plumbing and Heating: $82,360.00 + $3,500 leak test and fill for temp 
use, does not include roofing repairs if needed. 

• City Air Mechanical - $76,475.00, includes roof repairs if needed. 
• Mark’s Heating & Cooling: $73,524.00 includes charging old unit and 

patch roof in needed. 
 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2012 
PREPARATION DATE: May 31, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Memorial Building 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

Greg Welch, Finance Director 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Replacement of Air Handling Unit at the 

Memorial Building (City Hall) 

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 7 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) 
Page 2 of 7 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Proposals 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The replacement of the air handling unit at the Memorial 
Building (City Hall) would be paid from the City’s General Fund. We are 
requesting up to $80,000 as there may be unforeseen roofing issues that can be 
addressed at the time. 
 
STAFF IMPACT: N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: Reviewed by Malcolm Brown, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To waive the competitive bidding requirement for the 
replacement of the air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) and 
accept the Mark’s Heating & Cooling. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to waive the competitive bidding requirement for 
the replacement of the air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) and 
accept the Proposal from Mark’s Heating & Cooling. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Replacement of air handling unit at the Memorial Building (City Hall) 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a two year tax exemption for construction of a 
new apartment building pursuant to North Dakota Century Code 40-57.1. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City Commission Meeting of May 21, 
2013, Commissioner Braun motioned to consider the two-year exemption for Zueger 
Properties, Goldstar Properties, and Verity Homes with further discussion.  
Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Commissioner Frank asked for clarification 
from Commissioner Braun as to what he meant by “ consider the exemption with 
further discussion”   She said this is to approve the request for tax exemption.  
Commissioner Braun said it would be for consideration of the commitment for 
affordable housing clarifying what he meant is that he would expect Zueger to research 
what affordable housing means and that he will come back at a later time and report his 
findings. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $53,190.00 per year 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval of a Property Tax Incentive for New or Expanding 
Businesses for Zueger Properties, Goldstar Properties, and Verity Homes as has been 
done with previous apartment buildings, 24 units and above. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: A motion to approve a two year, 100% Property Tax Incentive 
for New or Expanding Businesses for Zueger Properties, Goldstar Properties, and Verity 
Homes in accordance policy regarding apartment units 24 units and above. 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 31, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Property Tax Incentives for New or Expanding 

Businesses for Zueger Properties, Goldstar 
Properties, Verity Homes 

 

  

Old Business No. 1 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
  

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To create and allow the assessments of specials related to, 
authorize the required paperwork for the requested project, and allow for the project to be bid. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The developer is requesting that the City allow the special 
assessment of street costs to the benefitting properties for the development of Heart Ridge 2nd 
Addition.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   1. Resolution creating district 
   2. District Map 
   3. Engineer’s Report 
                              4. Resolution Approving Engineer’s Report 
   5. Resolution of plans and specs 
   6. Resolution determining sufficiency of petition 
   7. Petition 
                              8. Feasibility Report 
                              9. Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bids 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:   Based on the estimate of cost included with your documentation, the cost 
of the project would be $1,048,816.55, engineering and administration will add $262,204.14, 
bringing the total to $1,311,020.69. These items would be entirely special assessed to the 
benefitting properties.  There are 78 lots within this special assessment district which would be 
approximately $16,808 per lot in specials. 
    
STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 
 

MEETING DATE: May 26, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: June 4, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Consider the creation of, approval of the 

engineer’s report, approve the plans and 
specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, 
feasibility report and advertisement for bids for 
Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 
2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 

 

  

New Business No. 1 & Resolution No. 5 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 2 of 17 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   
   Attorney for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports moving forward with the project. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the creation of, approval of the engineer’s 
report, approve the plans and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition and 
feasibility report and approve advertisement for bid for Street Improvement District No. 
185, Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 3 of 17 
 

RESOLUTION CREATING 
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185   

Project No. 2013-19 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
North Dakota, as follows: 
 
 1.  There is hereby created Street Improvement District No. 185 (the 
“District”)(Project# 2013-19) of the City of Mandan for the purpose of making an 
improvement project of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), N.D.C.C., to improve 
those parts of the municipal street system listed below.  The improvement to said streets 
within this improvement district shall include, but not be limited to, Plains Bend SE from 
19th Street SE, 18th Street SE, Fields Court SE, 14th Street SE and Ridge Drive SE, and 
includes street construction, installation of curb and gutter, asphalt street, storm sewer, 
street lights, chip seal and related work.   
 
 2.  Consultation with respect thereto having been had with the City Engineer, as to 
the property to be benefitted by said improvement project and the most practical size, 
form and location of said District, said District shall include all the lots, tracts and parcels 
of land lying within the City of Mandan and its additions within the following boundary 
lines: namely:   
 

The following lots and blocks are included in said District: 
 
Lots 19 & 20 Block 1, Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
Lot 13 Block 3, Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
Lot 9 Block 4, Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
Lots 1-7 Block 1, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
Lots 1-15 Block 2, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
Lots 1-30 Block 3, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
Lots 1-22 Block 4, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
 
 The legal description of the district boundary is as follows: 

 
All that part of lot a of auditor's subdivision and lots 1-4 block 5 Heart Ridge Addition 
and part of the south 1/2 of the southeast 1/4 of section 34 township 139 north, range 81 
west of the 5th principal meridian, city of Mandan, North Dakota,  described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the southwest corner of Heart Ridge Addition to the city of Mandan, North 
Dakota;  thence south 89 degrees 33 minutes 38 seconds west, along the north right of 
way line of 19th street se, a distance of 499.88 feet;  thence north 00 degrees 25 minutes 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 4 of 17 
 
51 seconds west, a distance of 89.96 feet;  thence south 89 degrees 34 minutes 16 seconds 
west, a distance of 90.00 feet;  thence south 00 degrees 25 minutes 51 seconds east, a 
distance of 89.97 feet to the north right of way line of 19th street se;  thence south 89 
degrees 33 minutes 38 seconds west, along said right of way, a distance of 954.43 feet to 
the east line of the se 1/4;  thence north 00 degrees 03 minutes 27 seconds east along said 
east line, a distance of 1252.35 feet  to the north line of the s 1/2 of the se 1/4;  thence 
north 89 degrees 37 minutes 05 seconds east along said north line, a distance of 1,321.81 
feet to the boundary line of lot a of auditor's subdivision & Heart Ridge Addition;  thence 
north 00 degrees 00 minutes 28 seconds east, along said boundary line, a distance of 
997.82 feet;  thence continuing north 52 degrees 21 minutes 55 seconds east along said 
boundary line, a distance of 29.84 feet;  thence continuing north 46 degrees 15 minutes 47 
seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 91.57 feet;  thence continuing north 
42 degrees 39 minutes 01 seconds east along said boundary line , a distance of 49.99 feet;  
thence continuing north 39 degrees 16 minutes 24 seconds east along said boundary line, 
a distance of 54.93 feet;  thence continuing north 31 degrees 19 minutes 31 seconds east 
along said boundary line, a distance of 199.46 feet;  thence continuing north 89 degrees 
37 minutes 14 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 391.04 feet to the 
northwest corner of hit addition to the city of Mandan;  thence continuing south 13 
degrees 59 minutes 50 seconds east along the west line of said hit addition, a distance of 
535.02 feet to the north boundary line of Heart Ridge Addition;  thence south 89 degrees 
37 minutes 14 seconds west, along said boundary line, a distance of 184.38 feet;  thence 
continuing south 23 degrees 36 minutes 53 seconds west, along said boundary line, a 
distance of 290.17 feet;  thence continuing south 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds west 
along said boundary line, a distance of 110.88 feet;  thence continuing south 78 degrees 
07 minutes 57 seconds west along said boundary line,  a distance of 203.23 feet;  thence 
continuing north 83 degrees 02 minutes 51 seconds west along said boundary line,  a 
distance of 33.02 feet to the center line of plains bend se;  thence southwesterly and to the 
right, along said centerline, on a 600.00 foot radius curve, the radius of which bears north 
85 degrees 04 minutes 57 seconds west, an arc length of 493.05 feet; thence south 52 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds west, along said center line, a distance of 16.41 feet to the 
boundary line of said Heart Ridge Addition;  thence south 14 degrees 37 minutes 25 
seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 35.95 feet;  thence continuing south 
41 degrees 28 minutes 17 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 198.82 
feet;  thence continuing south 38 degrees 49 minutes 49 seconds west along said 
boundary line, a distance of 124.38 feet;  thence continuing south 77 degrees 07 minutes 
20 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 102.51 feet;  thence continuing 
south 42 degrees 19 minutes 37 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 
137.26 feet;  thence continuing south 03 degrees 48 minutes 29 seconds east along said 
boundary line, a distance of 168.03 feet;  thence continuing south 29 degrees 24 minutes 
23 seconds west, along said boundary line, a distance of 160.60 feet;  thence continuing 
south 19 degrees 44 minutes 02 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 76.47 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 5 of 17 
 
feet;  thence continuing south 03 degrees 40 minutes 36 seconds west along said 
boundary line, a distance of 159.64 feet;  thence continuing south 07 degrees 53 minutes 
54 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 66.63 feet;  thence continuing 
south 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds west along said boundary line, a distance of 
204.70 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
The above described tract contains 57.20 acres more or less.    
 
  
           3.  Pursuant to section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, the City 
Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a report as to the general nature, 
purpose and feasibility of the proposed improvement and an estimate of the probable cost 
of the improvement. 
 
 4.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
                                                            
                   President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
________________ 
City Administrator 
 
Date of Passage:   June 4, 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 6 of 17 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 7 of 17 
 

 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 8 of 17 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 
AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

1. That the report of the City Engineer with respect to the general nature, purpose, 

and feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of the probable cost of the 

work to be done in Street Improvement District No. 185 (Project  # 2013-19), as required 

by section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, and hereto filed in the office of 

the City Administrator, is hereby accepted and approved and the proposed improvement 

project within said District is hereby determined and declared to be feasible.  

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as 

follows: 

 a. Construction costs:              $1,048,816.55  

 b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents’ and 

attorneys’ fees; cost of publication of legal notices; 

printing of warrant bonds; and all expenses incurred 

in the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor:    

 

 

 

 

$262,204.14 

         c. Total estimated costs of the improvement:              $1,311,020.69 

 

3. The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 9 of 17 
 
4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 4th day of June 2013. 

     
     ________________________________                                                                          
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
 _______________                                                    
City Administrator 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 10 of 17 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
PROJECT # 2013-19 

 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 185 (Project # 2013-19) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 4 day of June, 2013. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 11 of 17 
 

 
RESOLUTION DETERMINING SUFFICIENCY OF FORMS OF PETITION, WAIVER 
AND CONSENT TO ASSESSMENT FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 

185 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of Mandan, North Dakota: 
 
 1. The City having received and filed executed written forms of Petition, Waiver 
and Consent to Assessment executed by Lance Wachter, the owners of a majority of property 
area, for the improvement in and for Street Improvement District No. 185,  Project  No. 2013-
19("the District"), and true and correct copies of said executed forms being attached hereto, it is 
hereby determined that said forms are signed by the owners of a majority of the area of property 
included within the District. 
 
 2. This Board is authorized to cause the improvement in and for the District to be 
made, and to levy and collect assessments therefore. 
 
 Dated this 4th day of June, 2013 
       
                                                                                     
      President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 12 of 17 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 13 of 17 
 

 
 
           



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 14 of 17 
 
 
          RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 185 (Project # 

2013-19) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

June 4, 2013, and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on file in 

the office of the City Engineer. 

 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 
  
                                               “ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
                                  STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
                                                MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 
sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until June 28, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., 
local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill needed for the 
new construction of storm sewer mains, asphalt streets, concrete curb and gutter 
and street lights and related work in accordance with the plans and specifications for 
Street Improvement District No. 185 (Project  # 2013-19),  for the City of Mandan.  
The Work consists of all labor, skill, and materials required to properly construct the 
improvement. 
 
 Plans and Specifications are on file in the office of the City Administrator and 
the City Engineer.  Plans may be obtained at this office of the City Engineer, 205 2nd 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 15 of 17 
 
Avenue Northwest, Mandan, North Dakota 58554, upon a non-refundable deposit of 
$25.00. If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage 
and handling. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, June 28, 2013 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Street 
Improvement District No 185.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: City 
Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids will 
be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on June 14th, 2013.  All bidders are invited to be present at the public 
opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-05 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.1-05 (3), North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed 
by the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.1-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Work shall be completed on or before the following dates with liquidated 
damages assessed as follows: 
 
 All construction work on Project #2013-19 is to be completed no later than 
August 23, 2013 except the Street Lighting which will have a completion date of 
September 17, 2013. 
 Liquidated damages of $100.00 per day will be assessed if any completion 
dates are exceeded. 
   



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 16 of 17 
 
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed, for each District. Liquidated damages will 
continue to accumulate until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents 
further construction.  Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction 
in the Spring of 2014 and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The 
Contractor and his surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be 
deducted from the final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and 
not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, July 2nd, 2013, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to determine the sufficiency of protests, to review the Bids 
submitted, consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the contract to 
the successful Bidder, if protests have been deemed insufficient.  The contract will 
be awarded on the basis of the low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a responsible 
and responsive Bidder deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 4 day of June, 2013 
        
       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer               
       City Administrator” 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 
 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, June 18, 2013 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 

recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful bidder, subject to the 

Board finding that filed protests are insufficient to bar the work. 

 
      _________________________________ 
      President, Board of City Commissioners 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
Subject: Consider the creation of, approval of the engineer’s report, approve the plans 
and specifications for, approve sufficiency of petition, feasibility report and 
advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 
(Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
Page 17 of 17 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: June 4th, 2013 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider moving forward with these two projects that were 

identified to be repaired on the May 21, 2013 Commission meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  We received two quotes for milling, patching, overlay 

and chip seal for 46
th
 Ave SE from 29

th
 St SE to South Bay Dr SE and on 2

nd
 St NW from Collins 

Ave to 6
th
 Ave NW.  Northern Improvement was low for both projects with a total cost of 

$216,718.  Indications at this point, we could change order this project on to the existing Diane’s 

Addition project with the new prices quoted.  These two areas are in desperate need of attention 

and if can move forward with this now we will eliminate temporary repairs and costs from our 

department. 

  

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The City of Mandan received $843,243.59 from the State Treasurer and 

the funds have been placed in the Highway Distribution Fund for use on roadway maintenance 

purposes, we would have $626,525.59 remaining for other proposed projects. 

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A   

 

RECOMMENDATION: Move forward with the proposed street repairs using Northern 

Improvement existing contract for the Diane’s Addition project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to award Northern Improvement Co. the mill, overlay and chip 

seal projects on 46
th
 Ave SE and 2

nd
 St NW for $216,718 through a change order on the Diane’s 

Addition project. 

 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: May 30, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright 

SUBJECT: Consider mill and overlay projects on 46
th

 Ave SE 

and 2
nd

 Street NW. 

 

  

New Business No. 2 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  1150 
 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN ADJOINING LANDS TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, 
MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, AND EXTENDING THE CORPORATE 
BOUNDARIES THEREOF. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota has determined it to be its 

interests to annex the hereinafter described property, which is contiguous to the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, but not embraced within the limits thereof, and has met all requirements as 

directed by Section 40-51.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

 

 SECTION 1. Property Annexed.  The following described land is situated in the County of 

Morton, State of North Dakota, and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota, is hereby added to, taken into, annexed and made part of the City of Mandan, namely: 

 

A tract of land being Auditor’s Lot B in Government Lot 1, in the NE ¼ of Section 3, Township 138N, 

Range 81W of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Morton County, North Dakota that lies within the following 

described traverse:  

 

Beginning at the northwest corner of Lincoln Ridge Estates to the City of Mandan, North Dakota; thence 

South 01”03’13” East along the west boundary line of said Lincoln Ridge Estates a distance of 314.00 

feet to the true point of beginning , said point being the northwest corner of Lot 9, Block 2 of said Lincoln 

Ridge Estates, said point also being the southeast corner of Auditor’s Lot “A” of Government Lot 1, 

Section 3, Township 138N, Range 81W; thence continuing South 01”03’13” East along the west 

boundary line of said Lot 9 a distance of 100.00 feet to the southwest corner of said Lot 9; thence South 

88”57’41” West a distance of 110.00 feet; thence North 22”51’11” West a distance of 107.71 feet to the 

southwest corner of said Auditor’s Lot “A”; thence North 88”57’41” East along the south boundary line 

of said Auditor’s Lot “A” a distance of 150.00 feet to the true point of beginning. Said tract of land 

containing 13,000 sq. ft. (0.30 Acres), more or less. 

 

 SECTION 2. Corporate Boundary Extended.  Upon the taking effect of this Ordinance, the 

corporate limits and boundary lines of the City of Mandan shall thereafter include said lands.   

 

     By:                                                                                               

      Arlyn Van Beek, President,  

                    Board of City Commissioners 
 

Attest 

 

                                                                 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:         May 21, 2013              

Second Consideration  

      and Final Passage:     June 4, 2013           

Date of Recording:                              

 

 

 

 

 

Res. & Ord. No. 1 



 

 

               



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1151 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF THE MANDAN 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND ZONING 

MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Municipal Code is amended 

to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan shall be excluded 

from the R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) zoning and MC (Light Non-Nuisance Industrial/Heavy 

Commercial) and shall be included in the RM (Multi-Family Residential)  namely, 

 

Lots 6-8 and part of Lot 5, Block 1 and Lots 4-9 and part of Lots 3 & 10, Block 2 

of Meadow Ridge 3
rd

 Addition in Section 22, Township 139N, Range 81W 

Meadow Ridge 3
rd

 Addition in Section 22, Township 139N, Range 81W . 

 

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted. The city administrator is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance 

with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:   April 22, 2013_____ 

First Consideration:   May 21, 2013______   

Second Consideration 

and Final Passage:               June 4, 2013 _____   

Publication Date:     _____   

Recording Date:                              _____   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Res. & Ord. No. 2 



 

 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1152 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF THE MANDAN 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND ZONING 

MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Municipal Code is amended 

to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan shall be excluded 

from the R7 (Single-Family Residential) and R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) zoning and shall be 

included in the RM (Multi-Family Residential) namely, 

 

Parts of Lot 1, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2 of School District 5
th

 Addition in 

Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W  

 

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted. The city administrator is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance 

with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:   April 22, 213_______ 

First Consideration:   May 21, 2013_______  

Second Consideration 

and Final Passage:               June 4, 2013     

Publication Date:   June 28, 2013     

Recording Date:                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Res. & Ord. No. 3 



 
 



 
RESOLUTION  

APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR  
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 176 

(Project No. 2012-20)(McKenzie Drive SE, 34th Avenue SE & Genoa Court SE) 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota (the 
“City”), as follows: 

 
 1. It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore caused Notice for 

Advertisement for Bids to be made for an improvement Street Improvement 
District No. 176 of said City, and has duly and publicly opened and considered 
said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 

 
 2. Said improvement is hereby ordered to be constructed in accordance with the 

plans and specifications therefore as heretofore adopted by this Board pursuant to 
a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 

 
 3. It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible bidder for various 

categories of the work, material and skill required for said improvement is 
Northern Improvement Company whose bid provides for the construction of said 
improvement at a total estimated base price of $1,240,657.70. 

 
 4. The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan and 

City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and enter into a contract 
with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form prescribed by Sections 40-22-
35 and 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, provided that said bidder shall within ten 
(10) days from this date execute said contract and a construction bond conditioned 
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 40-22-30 and 40-22-32 of said 
Code. 

       
Dated this 4th day of June, 2013 
 
 
                                                                        _________________________                                             
      Arlyn Van Beek, President of the 
      Board of City Commissioners 
 
Attest: 
                                               
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 

Res. & Ord. No. 4 



 
RESOLUTION CREATING 

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185   
Project No. 2013-19 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, North 
Dakota, as follows: 
 
 1.  There is hereby created Street Improvement District No. 185 (the “District”)(Project# 
2013-19) of the City of Mandan for the purpose of making an improvement project of the type 
specified in Section 40-22-01(2), N.D.C.C., to improve those parts of the municipal street system 
listed below.  The improvement to said streets within this improvement district shall include, but 
not be limited to, Plains Bend SE from 19th Street SE, 18th Street SE, Fields Court SE, 14th Street 
SE and Ridge Drive SE, and includes street construction, installation of curb and gutter, asphalt 
street, storm sewer, street lights, chip seal and related work.   
 
 2.  Consultation with respect thereto having been had with the City Engineer, as to the 
property to be benefitted by said improvement project and the most practical size, form and 
location of said District, said District shall include all the lots, tracts and parcels of land lying 
within the City of Mandan and its additions within the following boundary lines: namely:   
 

The following lots and blocks are included in said District: 
 
Lots 19 & 20 Block 1, Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
Lot 13 Block 3, Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
Lot 9 Block 4, Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
Lots 1-7 Block 1, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
Lots 1-15 Block 2, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
Lots 1-30 Block 3, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
Lots 1-22 Block 4, Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
 
 The legal description of the district boundary is as follows: 

 
All that part of lot a of auditor's subdivision and lots 1-4 block 5 Heart Ridge Addition and part 
of the south 1/2 of the southeast 1/4 of section 34 township 139 north, range 81 west of the 5th 
principal meridian, city of Mandan, North Dakota,  described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the southwest corner of Heart Ridge Addition to the city of Mandan, North Dakota;  
thence south 89 degrees 33 minutes 38 seconds west, along the north right of way line of 19th 
street se, a distance of 499.88 feet;  thence north 00 degrees 25 minutes 51 seconds west, a 
distance of 89.96 feet;  thence south 89 degrees 34 minutes 16 seconds west, a distance of 90.00 
feet;  thence south 00 degrees 25 minutes 51 seconds east, a distance of 89.97 feet to the north 
right of way line of 19th street se;  thence south 89 degrees 33 minutes 38 seconds west, along 
said right of way, a distance of 954.43 feet to the east line of the se 1/4;  thence north 00 degrees 
03 minutes 27 seconds east along said east line, a distance of 1252.35 feet  to the north line of the 
s 1/2 of the se 1/4;  thence north 89 degrees 37 minutes 05 seconds east along said north line, a 
distance of 1,321.81 feet to the boundary line of lot a of auditor's subdivision & Heart Ridge 

Res. & Ord. No. 5 

 
Page 1 of 3 



Addition;  thence north 00 degrees 00 minutes 28 seconds east, along said boundary line, a 
distance of 997.82 feet;  thence continuing north 52 degrees 21 minutes 55 seconds east along 
said boundary line, a distance of 29.84 feet;  thence continuing north 46 degrees 15 minutes 47 
seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 91.57 feet;  thence continuing north 42 
degrees 39 minutes 01 seconds east along said boundary line , a distance of 49.99 feet;  thence 
continuing north 39 degrees 16 minutes 24 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 
54.93 feet;  thence continuing north 31 degrees 19 minutes 31 seconds east along said boundary 
line, a distance of 199.46 feet;  thence continuing north 89 degrees 37 minutes 14 seconds east 
along said boundary line, a distance of 391.04 feet to the northwest corner of hit addition to the 
city of Mandan;  thence continuing south 13 degrees 59 minutes 50 seconds east along the west 
line of said hit addition, a distance of 535.02 feet to the north boundary line of Heart Ridge 
Addition;  thence south 89 degrees 37 minutes 14 seconds west, along said boundary line, a 
distance of 184.38 feet;  thence continuing south 23 degrees 36 minutes 53 seconds west, along 
said boundary line, a distance of 290.17 feet;  thence continuing south 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds west along said boundary line, a distance of 110.88 feet;  thence continuing south 78 
degrees 07 minutes 57 seconds west along said boundary line,  a distance of 203.23 feet;  thence 
continuing north 83 degrees 02 minutes 51 seconds west along said boundary line,  a distance of 
33.02 feet to the center line of plains bend se;  thence southwesterly and to the right, along said 
centerline, on a 600.00 foot radius curve, the radius of which bears north 85 degrees 04 minutes 
57 seconds west, an arc length of 493.05 feet; thence south 52 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds 
west, along said center line, a distance of 16.41 feet to the boundary line of said Heart Ridge 
Addition;  thence south 14 degrees 37 minutes 25 seconds east along said boundary line, a 
distance of 35.95 feet;  thence continuing south 41 degrees 28 minutes 17 seconds east along said 
boundary line, a distance of 198.82 feet;  thence continuing south 38 degrees 49 minutes 49 
seconds west along said boundary line, a distance of 124.38 feet;  thence continuing south 77 
degrees 07 minutes 20 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 102.51 feet;  thence 
continuing south 42 degrees 19 minutes 37 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 
137.26 feet;  thence continuing south 03 degrees 48 minutes 29 seconds east along said boundary 
line, a distance of 168.03 feet;  thence continuing south 29 degrees 24 minutes 23 seconds west, 
along said boundary line, a distance of 160.60 feet;  thence continuing south 19 degrees 44 
minutes 02 seconds east along said boundary line, a distance of 76.47 feet;  thence continuing 
south 03 degrees 40 minutes 36 seconds west along said boundary line, a distance of 159.64 feet;  
thence continuing south 07 degrees 53 minutes 54 seconds east along said boundary line, a 
distance of 66.63 feet;  thence continuing south 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds west along 
said boundary line, a distance of 204.70 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
The above described tract contains 57.20 acres more or less.    
 
  
           3.  Pursuant to section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, the City Engineer is 
hereby authorized and directed to prepare a report as to the general nature, purpose and 
feasibility of the proposed improvement and an estimate of the probable cost of the 
improvement. 
 
 4.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 



                                                             
                  President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
________________ 
City Administrator 
 
Date of Passage:   June 4, 2013 

 
Page 3 of 3 



 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 
AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota, as follows: 

1. That the report of the City Engineer with respect to the general nature, purpose, and 

feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of the probable cost of the work to be 

done in Street Improvement District No. 185 (Project  # 2013-19), as required by section 40-22-

10 of the North Dakota Century Code, and hereto filed in the office of the City Administrator, is 

hereby accepted and approved and the proposed improvement project within said District is 

hereby determined and declared to be feasible.  

 

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as follows: 

 a. Construction costs:              $1,048,816.55  

 b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents’ and 

attorneys’ fees; cost of publication of legal notices; 

printing of warrant bonds; and all expenses incurred 

in the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor:    

 

 

 

 

$262,204.14 

         c. Total estimated costs of the improvement:              $1,311,020.69 

 

3. The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 

 

4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 4th day of June 2013. 

     ________________________________                                                                          
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
 _______________                                                    
City Administrator 

Res. & Ord. No. 5 

 
Page 1 of 1 



 
 RESOLUTION DETERMINING SUFFICIENCY OF FORMS OF PETITION, 

WAIVER AND CONSENT TO ASSESSMENT FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 185 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of Mandan, North Dakota: 
 
 1. The City having received and filed executed written forms of Petition, Waiver 
and Consent to Assessment executed by Lance Wachter, the owners of a majority of property 
area, for the improvement in and for Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 2013-
19("the District"), and true and correct copies of said executed forms being attached hereto, it is 
hereby determined that said forms are signed by the owners of a majority of the area of property 
included within the District. 
 
 2. This Board is authorized to cause the improvement in and for the District to be 
made, and to levy and collect assessments therefore. 
 
 Dated this 4th day of June, 2013 
       
                                                                                     
      President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
City Administrator 

Res. & Ord. No. 5 



 
RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
PROJECT # 2013-19 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street Improvement 

District No. 185 (Project # 2013-19) of said City be and the same are hereby approved, 

ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in accordance with which said 

improvement project will be constructed, except as modified by this Board in 

accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall file the same in his office, open for 

public inspection. 

 Dated this 4 day of June, 2013. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 

Res. & Ord. No. 5 

 
Page 1 of  1 



 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the time 

and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the purpose of 

opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the improvement project to be 

made in Street Improvement District No. 185 (Project # 2013-19) of the City of Mandan, as 

more fully described and referred to in the resolution creating said improvement district 

passed and approved by the Board on June 4, 2013, and in the plans and specifications for 

said improvement now on file in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in the 

Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least fourteen 

days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in the following form: 
  
                                               “ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 
                                  STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 185 
                                                MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive sealed 
bids at the office of the City Administrator until June 28, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., local time for 
the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill needed for the new construction of 
storm sewer mains, asphalt streets, concrete curb and gutter and street lights and related 
work in accordance with the plans and specifications for Street Improvement District No. 
185 (Project  # 2013-19),  for the City of Mandan.  The Work consists of all labor, skill, and 
materials required to properly construct the improvement. 
 
 Plans and Specifications are on file in the office of the City Administrator and the City 
Engineer.  Plans may be obtained at this office of the City Engineer, 205 2nd Avenue 
Northwest, Mandan, North Dakota 58554, upon a non-refundable deposit of $25.00. If Plans 
are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and handling. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., local 
time, June 28, 2013 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for Street Improvement 
District No 185.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: City Administrator, City of Mandan, 
205 2nd Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids will be opened and read aloud in the City 
Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., local time, on June 14th, 2013.  All bidders are 
invited to be present at the public opening of the Bids. 
 

Res. & Ord. No. 5 

 
Page 1 of  3 



 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided by 
Section 43-07-05 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a copy of his 
license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond envelope as 
required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s bond in 
the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required by Section 48-
01.1-05 (3), North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by the Bidder as 
principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is accepted and the contract 
awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days after Notice of Award, shall execute 
and effect a contract in accordance with the terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as 
required by law.  No bid may be read or considered if it does not fully comply with the 
requirements of Section 48-01.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid 
must be resealed and returned to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  All work 
under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a written order from 
the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days after written notice to 
proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Work shall be completed on or before the following dates with liquidated damages 
assessed as follows: 
 
 All construction work on Project #2013-19 is to be completed no later than August 
23, 2013 except the Street Lighting which will have a completion date of September 17, 
2013. 
 Liquidated damages of $100.00 per day will be assessed if any completion dates are 
exceeded. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to the 
above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal extensions 
of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any money due the 
contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the completion of the Work is 
delayed, for each District. Liquidated damages will continue to accumulate until the City 
Engineer determines winter weather prevents further construction.  Liquidated damages will 
restart on the first day of construction in the Spring of 2014 and continue to accumulate until 
final project acceptance.  The Contractor and his surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such 
payments shall be deducted from the final payment and shall be charged as liquidated 
damages and not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, July 2nd, 2013, at  
5:30 PM, local time, to determine the sufficiency of protests, to review the Bids submitted, 
consider the engineer’s recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful 
Bidder, if protests have been deemed insufficient.  The contract will be awarded on the 
basis of the low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a responsible and responsive Bidder 
deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any informality 
or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date fixed for the 
opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the best interest of the 
City of Mandan. 

 
Page 2 of  3 



 
  Dated this 4 day of June, 2013 
       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer               
 City Administrator” 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 

 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, June 18, 2013 at 5:30 

pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s recommendation, and 

to award the contract to the successful bidder, subject to the Board finding that filed protests 

are insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________   
                President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: June 4th, 2013 

 
Page 3 of  3 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider adopting a resolution annexing certain 
property in the general proximity of the Mandan Middle School. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Discussions have been occurring with several 
individuals who have acquired property in the north part of Mandan and are looking to 
develop this property into residential and commercial areas. The City of Mandan has, 
over the course of several years, prepared master water and sanitary sewer plans for this 
area. 
 
Challenges exist for the orderly and cost effective development in the area, therefore, we 
are proposing a large land area be annexed in order to better plan future infrastructure 
routes. One example would be the installation of a master lift station to handle the 
sanitary sewer in this area rather than several smaller temporary lift stations. 
 
We certainly do not plan to install infrastructure until the need arises, however, there 
will be infrastructure that will benefit all property in the area and thus a need to spread 
some costs to the benefited area. 
 
We are nearing the completion of the North Area Sub Study and in addition the 
interchanges between west Mandan and east Bismarck are currently under study with a 
completion date of November 2013. 
 
I would anticipate the following: 
 
1) May 21st, bring the topic to the Commission and answer questions that they may 
have 
2) June 4th, bring a resolution to annex to the Commission for their consideration.  
3) June 7th, 1st publication 
4) June 14th, 2nd Publication 
5) July 8th, 4:30 p.m. deadline for protesting annexation 

MEETING DATE: June 4, 2013 
PREPARATION DATE: May 31, 2013 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Resolution regarding North Annexation 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 6 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: May 21, 2013 
Subject: North Annexation 
Page 2 of 6 
 
6) July 16th, 5:30 p.m. determine if sufficiency of any written protests 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   Map of proposed annexation – Map is still under development and 
awaiting legal description to insert into resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  unknown at this time 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  City Attorney Brown has been involved in this process. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approval of the resolution to annex. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve and cause publication of the resolution of 
annexation of certain lands adjoining the City of Mandan as described in the resolution. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: May 21, 2013 
Subject: North Annexation 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: May 21, 2013 
Subject: North Annexation 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: May 21, 2013 
Subject: North Annexation 
Page 5 of 6 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: May 21, 2013 
Subject: North Annexation 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 


	Agenda June 4, 2013
	Minutes - April 30, 2013 BOE
	Minutes - May 21, 2013 Regular CC mtg.
	Public Hearing - JDS Holding, LLP
	Bid Street imp. D176 Project 2012-20(McKenzie Dr. SE Genoa Ct. SE & 34th Ave. SE)
	Bid award rr Lift Station 2013
	Lakewood Commercial Park 2 Replat
	Meadows 7th Addition
	River Garden Addition
	Terra Vallee 6th Lots 11 & 12 Block 1 Variance
	Mandan Baseball Club at Westside Bar-Grill and Mulligans site authorization
	Homestead Credit exemption - Lorraine Glasser
	Air Handling Units
	Zueger Properties, Goldstar Properties, Verity Homes
	Street Imp. 2013-19 D185
	Street Repairs
	Ord. 1150 only
	Ord. 1151 only
	Ord. 1152 only
	Res approving contract and contractors bond for street imp. D176
	Resolutions - D185 Proj. 2013-19
	North Annexation resolution

